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Shri Kanungo: I beg to move:

“That the Bill, as

amended,
be passed.”

Mr. Speaker: Motion moved:

“That the Bill, as arhended, be
passed.” :

Now, the Third reading on this Bill
will take place tomorrow and we will
take up the other business, in the
Order Paper.

15-25 hrs.

DISCUSSION RE: INDUS WATERS
TREATY

Mr. Speaker: Sardar Igbal Singh.

Shri Braj Raj Singh (Firozabad):
Sir, the time allotted for this is not
sufficient, This matter has created
considerable concern in the country.

Mr. Speaker: I have no objection
provided the hon. Members are willing
to sit till 6 o’clock.

Shri Naushir Bharucha (East Khan-
desh): When the same matter comes
up in the Supplementary Demands
also, some more time may be given
then also ... (Interruptions.)

Mr. Speaker: Very well.

Sardar
Igbal Singh.

Shri Mahanty (Dhenkanal): Sir,
this particular matter which we are
about to discuss is a matter concern-
ing our external relations with Pakis-
tan and it comes within the jurisdie-
tion of the Prime Minister and he has
been signing this Treaty since 1948.
In all humility may I request you to
kindly communicate to the hon.
Prime Minister that he should be
present? (Interruptions.) It is not a
matter of the Irrigation Ministry.
Therefore, I venture to submit that,
though the hon. Minister of Irrigation
is competent enough to answer the
points that may be raised on the floor
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of the House, in the fiitness of things
the hon. Prime Minister may be
requested to come here so that he can

dispel our misgivings and doubts if
any.

Mr. Speaker: It is a matter of joint
responsibility: any Minister may be
present.

The Minister of Irrigation and
Power (Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim):
May I inform the hon. Member that
the Prime Minister also will be speak-
ing on this subject in this House?

Mr. Speaker: Even apart from that,
I do not propose to give a ruling; it is
unnecessary. International treaties
such as GATT, etc. are entered into
in respect of trade, etc. Constantly
between our countiry and other coun-
tries. Is anybody entitled to say that
the hon. Prime Minister should under-
take the responsibility for entering in-
to these treaties and he is not entitl-
ed to distribute these portfolios?
Some element of international affairs
comes in and to that extent he is the
Minister in charge. But we are not
here to decide who is responsible for
what; there is the joint responsibility.
Of course in a matter like this, if the
hon. Members want to hear the Prime
Minister also, I would have no objec-
tion to request him but it is open to
the Minister in charge of the portfolio

to reply to the discussion and handle
the situation.

Shri Mahanty: The Prime Minister

was the signatory to this Treaty....
(Interruptions.)

Mr. Speaker: There is no point in
this. If the Prime Minister also comes
and takes part, I have no objection.

It is understood that we sit till 6
O’Clock?. ... (Interruptions).

Some Hon. Members: No....
Shri Vajpayee (Balrampur): Why
not tomorrow? (Interruptions.)

Shri Braj Raj Singh: Even if we sit
till 6, we shall not be able to finish it.
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Shri Kalika Singh (Azamgarh):

There is a reception at 6 O’Clock in

the Red Fort.

Mr. Speaker: . Let us see, this may
fizzle out. Sometimes it happens. If
hon. Members are willing to sit, I have
no objection. I will not hustle them.

ST T qTed, fow witde 9T te
qIEY, {8%0 I FUET N TErEd
§C, TI8 e o a1 e &, F o
a% fage @ O ¥, a1 gfmr ¥
ot 7o & felt g oW F Ay
frar, fomsr wEx #FAsgr &P
9EqT § | 7 O fewifh witde ar
Y& FgT o7 qFaAT § | THATIE F fpaw
fat #Y AgAa F AT T8 wAvfEET AT
oAt § | At e ag § fr fergem
q 3@ prfeET ¥ wow Avn & o
gifawr foram, @ Al oX 99 W &
faw, fom & o9 & SuTeT § /97 &, S
qifFeaTT ¥ IAT FT A T /R 9
HqHT T T F | I A & foaT 78
TfeaT U @ qEX @ § wite
T ) I et A speadaw w1
I S@rfgat F T AR farer
AT ] |

vgi % fegem &1 e &,
I wifead W TR @ T
wTEier Hifarar A iy fR ag @
iRt Y OF ¥ yaifel ¥ W™
Fraear frar o fr fegeamr & it
W R O ¥ e @
¥ | 39 fogay & @ HF N dqww
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fegem & o oT F &, W F
OIS 7Y Fg GFaT | AfH I wrd agt
@ & o7 mrefmat #y agr &Y s
& I D ¥ SEHT wER ATGW g
T & | gafed A g Enfew e},
R I¥ g9 A qIE A qGHAT I,
9T GO e #Y a6 § GHET AW
a1 9518 F qIHY ST A A< ¥, T
1 59 918 W 6 DRA T {7 79 Y
et & wwem s, @™ ofeanie #
JEEHT 79 A& g A0 | W g
THTERT AT g 2, Y AT
& Tz gu § afe @ g @
FET AW O AT T & T § | qaEw
et It & @ Fe W g ww
te¥s F g Y afwr qu e oK
fegam@ 7 Y 99 asd AT gRiwE
#Y, 98 TF dgaa deiaw &Y fiv art
Teq Af6T F TE /A FY, IqH IgIA
¥ fa@, 5% qum qrlt At awdw
fear s afg@ | IR A1 a9 qF
w1, I AW N9 57 | ¥ ag
wfegn ? 5 99 ag oy sreT
€ IF WR TEde s gfvear ¥
T JqQF g &, Y i & i
W gk & I e fgrge A
# ¥ 9 S frer arfeear X o
IT qam S ® oferw fear o
wifw fergeam & AWt & am ag <
T &%, fggem &Y wamw ® qar s
%, f5 fggeam & S dgah &
fad w7 W waw o § 1 wa S
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Tfear & 1 R sufed & wwwar
g 5 swsw A dfew w4 F
E qHEH TG § W IaE A
Hrieg % & WX T 98 I WO B
gigams @ & 9 5 fegeam & a)
L 50 o @ § 1 T f a® ST
a9 HifeE F & af@ars g 1 A
TATeRT & 97 99 F Ak § amada
R N, TR @ a g e 77
fed smy & av & ey @ & o TR
afeaTs 7 91 g6y | iad fegem
AN ol #} aSg 7w A
TaHE ATE IfEar F S TN aoE
% 7 fed wiiseqs 3 it ¥ 9w
R M Ufeeegz famn, sT+1 afew
FET AT |

Iq F qR g AT AT | AT
AT G H F AT, T TgT T Yo &o
Gz ¥ R N & fad i aw
T AR &1 a1 §, fow § s0
AR 7 qEaFias arae §, ™ fFe
& PATfed) A FW ¥ 0 TEHAT WE
gfem 7t oifemmiz A @@ 7 &4,
af 99 Y FH F 7 79N @R F
SEX AT AT 9T | F 7 A FgaAv
o5 oY oft ara S § 97 F A€ el
@ ay wifgd, IfFT W qw W
FHET § & I § madiT #
TG A WR TEAdAE T FH FT
et W o wogE @R 1 9T
et frm R e gdwy
femr w1 | e qw oWk
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FFdET ©3 FAT To W @ AT
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F W sifeen mfawar @@ o€
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AT d1 THE o Fha § 9§
& STl | R c3 FAT W GEET
fear t san &few e fifwe
A A e omar @ Y amg
&3 )T SR 7 grav1 gx 7 g fa,
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a1 | W@t 9 pfeR & & 51 aew
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| A g @A 1 S e @@
¢ 78 =8 I+ fw o & e -
e g, ot f& Twww s ¥ fad
WE, WA WM ers e ¢ 5 &
AR 9T 39 AT A, 91 a<fed BT
FT TAIEHT & IR AN FAE FT LT
& TR WU ATl ST w1 T |,
I T ¥ o & ¥ qg qr e
ST 97 AT WE 9 I A W@
g & T ouw wfwew § @
aafgd & qafew f& @ oet gw
qfrem W o &, ¥ W W
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AT W TEq T FE I AGY
forer wwar | @ o9 5 g foaw
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@ IE ¥ I A T e
TF &1 AT @ et w9 H A B
FaET | @ KW wrfet 3 o a3
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Y TN 9% 98 48 AR g e &
q1E 38 T § ATIW AX W, Tg AR A
T T | WY ARG S
T W FL QT ANEE wX, W T
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A FATT FT GATHT & (L%
AT qT (Lo FF WraTE A% frur ar
awar | @ o7 9gt e '@ guifed
tEfiRemw g fTww
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[T Tvamw fag]
g fedem § e &, St 7 mfemmm
FAT IHT AT AEAG q@arT arfear
fas, 9| ¥ ot =< w9 feur W,
Ffew fogmr o ofeeam &1 s &
¥ g gy faggr A Wfgd 4r,
99 ¥ g7 faggr 4 fean, @ axg
¥ FerFr g § foaer ar faagr
FAT I1fgd av S faggy € fFav
g WA T TRIE F TN A
77 A€ e N NS nfeEE F o=
Y, 37 ¥ ag awg ar faEgr w7
STeaT @, G IefiE g A R}
qifFe™ 1 P A, TG, A
R qTEF A Y AT =feh 4w )|
TR 39 & g ot R Aa &7
FAT 971 a7 3T ¥ B I faF Ty
T wfgg ff | A afsw
s ar f& @ At F o w1
forar o 9% FT Tifgd W) wfe &
fegmm o 7 9w 9 G w0
TG A g W T FE @
3 fos 4w F womar #1E fow Sa
T X Imew for daw faw A X
F AGAH TTIR IF HAL T AT
g arag s Afww w@a § |
g g [H A | W TR
¥ wR qfFaE ey & Sear
ar e T feea A @
I ARE Y a@ g 5 afeamie
¥ UF el @ I § TEEe 1
fem N g F, sfomw 88 9=
fafrer fr aw ¥ f5 R F A
firgrar 1% Ol arfreT B A 2,
AR IAFAI@E |
H 99 Q9o TF FT A1 FfHeAT §, I
F qUF WY 1 THAT § Q03 TF | W
FrE S FT A Gav @y . frw ¥
qiffea ag Tk X % f§ ag
#oER a1, e oF fafeedy for-
=R }, @@t wofar fefr H g
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¥ fge A 91 T § WK I T3
i 77 w9IgR a1 A7 TET A= @w faw
fr w¥w W atw fz q@ter, S§ A%
97 §HAT @ | F G Fgan fF @AW
T g, AT T Q20 aF A AW
g 9@ w&@fs gw 7 qfemie §
m fFm T ag e Fam e
ffem 1 FE a8 & fw
T A I FT WEA T & 39 ¥ &7
Q03 TF IT F1 AT a1a A& )
& 5 &) T AR § iR W domw
¥ I FIE FT T T BT @ o
fer g 4t | w9 oone § @ &
fam @1zt gy @9 @ o fa 2
agl 39 a1 TF A O @t Y qEY
foa, w1 58 am@ A @ @ A
& aFdt | 7@ Fed § o Ffww e
3 § g g T TaaNe W gfear
N THWH FEAT graT § A7 97 AFBEL
TNRLRERIT Y a@FQ@
21 9w TR A qEOET T 8
TE, I I AT AT @ F K AT
FIEAT Y, W9 TG I qG UF AT WY
T & g wofwa & 5w ¥ oF ds
ATEA qH< FT A 5 J@T QY maRgER
F 9% @ T F Y A gy A
FordrTr 1 oY &Y £ Ot M E g OF
g AT § P ] AR IW IR
I T O & AT § | I F AT
T g, few & ¥ EXfnew e
ST, fre a3 ¥ R e R
Ay A A

el a% T A A A5 §
I F qanfeas § ag FEg e §
W o9 g™ F s A fad
qrfaTie #t T 9T T I Arigd
e qar I q% 5 @ & fggmm &
AT FY AT FAT THEATE § WL ST Y
fegwa foar o 8% 1 77 Gl =
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&t fed f o i agg 4@ 9@ A
I FT I foaT IO

EIH THEEH & qr ¥ § s
wrga § e gfar # aga aafe gu
&, 3fr ez 7y oF T A &,
H T F€ T 9 47 § oK o
FT TAH RN I WL gTAT | AfFA
gfmar § &) ey Y TF & v g g
Tg Fga ¢ fF T @i &
HaTla® TRGE T T @Y #T
wha § e arfade SR g«
7@ ST =rfed | @ e Woww ¥
T T gk B A af gk Wy
sfagex 771 fF8 AT 39§
a1 TEEE R, T IfeR
TFEYE M A1 uF s
QFYE GIT | A FHAT FW | T A
R s & owdw 3 wwder
N ghw F€ ¥ 7§ A% afew @R
T ) T 2 F 1€ v Jfew
1 T ¥ qFR 57 9T | 3w AR-
faw & foafewr # & s Rew
TF FARET 1 GIH FE F DA
IqE FTUE A FG ¥ AAHE W7
AT [T ATRAT § | 9§ FF W@
g
The United States Supreme Court,

on a strikingly similar case, Colarado
vs. Kansas, said:

“The reason for judicial caution
in adjudicating the relative rights
of States in such cases is that,
while we have jurisdiction of such
disputes they involve the interests
of quasi-sovereigns, present com-
plicated and delicate questions,
and due to possibility of future
change of conditions, necessitate
expert administration rather than
judicial imposition of a hard and
fast rule.”

7g wwda A g o Y g
gt 7 #ré g dv o & T 8 forw
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¥ wraga deawr fFar 91 & @@ <

wFTe & ¢ AR a7 N F} g

@ F< iy A oT agw gy §

oY § TIfFEE ¥ 9 OF GEAr
forar &, oifseara & o fafaed ferie-
o &, W 37 # vw T7 & wFA
& I BT TF gEA &) At &, 1 q@r
I 97 Faifeai g av s gge g
framadFFa & wgroar 5 3
s T Rl T @ 1 Y & 3 fasfadr
HOF 99 dgN W g f5ogmd
FTH FT AT FRA AT A0fEd 41 48
g1 AT 7T | T S hT Y A ]
3G FT X F FG aF AAT IEAT I
T YT AT w1 | 7 39 Fawfadwr F
W TF FIEAT AT AT § |

Mr. Speaker: Hon Member’s time ig
up.

Sardar Igbal Singh: Five minutes
more, Sir.

Mr. Speaker: I cannot go on allow-
ing more time. There are about ten

hon. Members who have tabled this
motion.

Sardar Igbal Singh: With one more
quotation, I shall finish.

# TF FRAT {7 FT AT @A
framwmawy:

“In our country some thought
that methods of diplemacy which
were suitable when dealing with
democracies controlled by free
parliaments could not be applied
without reserve to militant dicta-
torships. These dictatorships were
no subject to the restraints of an
elected chamber. Their word alone
did not suffice, because it need not
be kept Therefore precautions
must be taken. = Others took a
different. view.”
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[eaR TFaT fag)
W¥aRfR e asg e

“They thought that they must
be met as honourable men and
dealt with as such, and that the
papers they signed and the assu-
rances they gave must be accept-
ed as having a validity comparable
to those signed by elected gov-
ernments. Not only must this be
the form in which negotiations
with them were conducted, but it
must be the spirit and the faith.”

TR T & I TR F A A w7
IR § Sife mw ¥ ofewm F
T fF 30 # 3@ wwfR A deww
FTIOT ¢ WIF 0F FHAT Y T 1 4
Fgr omr 2 fF 3@ dES A a9 ¥
& FT AR ¥ a9 ™) HfEA 94
I ARSI G U Sl
1 aorg ¥ Fraa Frelded g R @
TFar g f5 37 &) a5g § Fes aR AT A
Taa TN )] | AR fegeam @ fw
q T TR ARHAT w1 e wae
oMY A TET § 99 Y W9 A q0
' |

B & mifex & w0 www § 5

AR EAFAE G W FT9A & F9 A4y

A 29 ¥ JgaT W Y gar 91 WK

T HgAR T ¥ Y 9 )

Shri Harish Chandra Mathar (Pali):
Mr. Speaker, Sir, any long outstand-
ing dispute of this nature wbould, in
the ordinary course, be always wel-
eome. But, unforiunately, the facts
of the case as they are before us
give us an inevitable feeling that this
treaty is all to the disadvantage of
this country. The progress and the
developmen‘al programmes will be
retarded and it is all to the advant-
age-of Pakistan. It would be for the
hon. Minister here to convince us how
this treaty is fair and equitable and
how this country has not yielded too
much to Pakistan. 1 shall convey
through you to the Government that

NOVEMBER 30, 1960

Indus Waters Treaty 3178

the general feeling, at least in my
part of the country, particularly in
Rajasthan, is that Rajasthan has been
very badly let down in this treaty.
Not only that. I think I am quite
right when I say that this is the gen-
eral feeling all over the country. If
you were to look at the newspaper
comments, you will find that when
facts of the treaty were made known
to this country, all the leading news-
papers of this country made adverse
ccmments. I will only read a few
of the comments from those leading
papers to show how they have felt
after examining the various aspects of
this treaty.

Here is a comment from The Hindu
which says:

“New Delhi would recall how
step by siep India was making
concession after concessicn as the
negotiations progressed during
the last ten years.”

This is how The Hindu has summed
it up. It further says:

“Bad luck had dogged India
right from the partition which
gave Pmkisian the bulk of the
developed irrigation system of
the Indus basin. The World
Bank’s 1954 preposals which have
been %incorporated in the present
treaty....” and so on.

The Times of India says in its com-
ment:

“Almost on every major point
in dispute, India has yielded to
Pakistan’s wishes often at the
cost of its own interests.”

The Eastern Economists and the Com-
merce have also made similar com-
ments. I will not go further into all
these various comments made by the
various newspapers. Le' us see how
the facts stand as they are and let us
examine them on the floor nf the
House on the merits of the case.

When the most unfortunate event
of partition came and this country
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was divided into India and Pakistan, I
think it was clearly understood—it
should be clearly understood—that all
the consequences which flow from the
partition will have to be taken by
both the countries. At the time of
partition or immediately after parti-
tion, Pakistan never raised this ques-
tion. The only question raised in 1948
when we had signed certain inter-do-
minion agreements was—all that
Pakistan wanted was—that the water
which was being supplied frem India
from those canals should not be stop-
ped straightway, immediately and that
they should be allowed some time for
it. Nothing beyond that came up.
They only wanted that we should not
withdraw the water straightway and
immediately, and that they should be
allowed time so that they could make
alternative arrangements,

It is perfectly correct. From the
viewpoint of human considerations
and from the viewpoint of the fact
tha: we wanted to treat Pakistan as
a friendly country, we should have
conceded that. We did concede that.
It was agreed that they would make
certain payments to us and the water
would be permitted to go to Pakistan
till they made alternative arrange-
ments. As a matter of fact, Pakistan
was shrewd enough; they started dig-
ging certain link canals, but soon after,
when they found that India would
yield to pressure, they would not com-
plete the canals they started digging.
They started negotiating, trying to get
the bes! out of this country.

I would like to put a straight ques-
tion to the hon. Minister. When the
country was partitioned, was there any
obligation on our par: not to develop
our resources, which were within
this country? Was there any embargo
on that? We were well within our
rights to draw water from the rivers
to develop our resources and to do
what we can. The only question that
could have been asked was, to give
an opportunity to Pakistan, so that
Pakistan may be able to make certain
alternative arrangements for the water
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which was being given to Pakistan,
Nothing beyong that. Even the ques-

- tion of payment never arose. No pay-

ment was demanded when they start-
ed digging those canals. What is the
justification for any payment for
these canals?

15.52 hrs.
[SHRI JAGANATHA RAO in the Chair]

As things developed, they went on
making their demands bigger and
bigger, being as unreasonable as they
possibly can. We are for very
friendly relations with Pakistan. It
has been the effort of this House to
create a climate for very friendly re-
lations, but there is another aspect to
the whole question. I wish our Gov-
ernment takes note of the feeling in
this country in regard to that other
aspect. It is not only by being over-
generous that you can create a friend-
ly feeling. You must be a strong and
firm Government. You must create
a feeling on that side that all rea-
sonable demands would be consider-
ed, but nothing beyond the reasonable
demands. It is not that our over-
generousness should be at the cost of
our own people and at the cost of
the development of this country.

Mr. Chairman: The hon. Member's
time is up.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathar: I
have just started, Sir.

Mr. Chairman: Only 10 minutes
are allowed for each Member.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: I
cannot discuss this problem in 10
minutes; it is impossible.

Shri Vajpayee (Balrampur): More
time may be given to Rajasthan.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathar: We
are almost reducing this Parliament
to a fun....

Mr, Chairman: The time allotted
for this motion is 2 hours. The



3181 Discussion re:

[Mr. Chairman]

Speaker has said that 10 minutes
should be given to each Member, ex-
cept Shri Asoka Mehta,

Shri Harish Chandra Mathar: I
withdraw every word I have said; I
am not prepared to be curbed down
like this in such an important mat-
ter. I am very sorry if the Speaker
has made such a decision. If the
Speaker was here, I would have ar-
gued with him.

Mr. Chairman; 1 am surprised the
hon. Member is losing his temper.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: The
House should not be treated like thig
in this matter. You can either ex-
tend the time or....

Mr. Chairman: The hon. Member
should respect the ruling of the Chair.
He may take 2 more minutes.

Bhri Vajpayee: Is it not open to
the House to extend the time?

Mr. Chairman: The debate will go
on til] 6.

Shri Mahanty: When time was al-
“hatted for this moation, we whanted
more time and the Speaker said he
would kindly consider the question of
extension of time. What has happend
to that?

Mr. Chairman: The Speaker has
said that the debate will continue till
6 P.M.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: If
you can allow me another 10 minutes,
I shall continue.

Mr. Chairman: I cannot make an
exception in favour of a single Mem-
ber.

Shri A, C. Gaha (Barasat): Mr.
Chairman, Sir, he represents Rajas-
than, which has been badly affected.
With the general agreement of the
House, he may be given some extra
time.
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Mr. Chairman: He may take 5
minutes more,

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: I
shall be as brief as possible. This
friendly approach does not mean all
that. I wish it is clearly understood
by them; it does no good to anybody.
I will not be able to deal with all
the important points; I will come to
the brass-tacks of this question,

I shall draw the pointed attention
of the House to two important mat-
ters. Here on the floor of this House,
the Minister for Irrigation time and
again told us that the attitude of the
Government of India clearly is that
not a drop of water will be given to
Pakistan beyond 1962. I will read
what Shri S. K. Patil said:

“There is, however, a limit to
our patience. India will not
wait indefinitely for a settlement,
ignoring the needs of her people.”

Asked which Government has told
Pakistan and the World Bank the
limits to which India is ready to go,
he said:

“I do not know what those
limils are, whether in regard to
payment or in regard to .time
factor. So far as the time factor
is concerned, I have made it clear
that 1962 is the dead-line so far
as India can wait for the replace-
ment of these withdrawals.”

Now we go to 1970. What does it
mean? It means definitely a loss of
Rs. 100 crores per year, because of this
agreement. Here the Planning Com-
mission has just given a directive that
we should so execute and implement
our Plans that those Plans are not
staggered and we get quicker return.
What will happen in this case? There
will be no return for 10 years. What
is the use of wasting Rs. 60 crores and
they are staggered over 10 years. We
are acting against our own advice and
principle, at the cost of our own
people.
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There is another point where we are
severely affected. Through the treaty
we are losing 5 million acre-feet of
water. There is such a great poten-
tial in Rajasthan. Let the Minister
deny that we cannot possibly draw
5 million acre-feet of water from
Chenab and that will not help the
country perpetually. This will mean
another perpetual loss to the country
to the extent of about Rs. 70 crores
to Rs. 80 crores per year. This is the
implication of this treaty.

I also want to know what is the
justification of this figure of Rs. 83
crores? How has this figure been ar-
rived at? As I said in the beginning,
there was no justification. Evien if
you agree to any figure, it should not
have been in sterling. We know our

difficulties about foreign exchange. We-

could have come to certain agreements
and provided them cement and so
many other things.

Last but not the least is, what have
we got out of it? What goodwill has
come out of the friendship we have
generated? Immediately after this
treaty was signed, we find the Presi-
dent of Pakistan talking about the
physical possession of the upper
reaches of these rivers. It is really
most disappointing, if we have gene-
rated this sort of goodwill that the
President of Pakistan talks of the up-
per reaches of these rivers. I could
have understood all these sacrifices if
we had. through this treaty, solved
also the Kashmir problem. The only
trobule about Kashmir was, because
the rivers flow from Kashmir
and through this country, Pakistan
was in a difficult position about that.
So, if they are assured of their deve-
lopmental projects and of their irriga-
tion, Kashmir ceases to be a problem.
Has Kashmir ceased to be a problem?
Rajasthan is part of this country and
it is not that I am here ventilating the
grievances of Rajasthan. Rajasthan
is already a surplus State and
with itg canal, we want people from all
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over the country to come and settle
there. We would have been very
happy to make these scrifices if the
Kashmir problem was solved because
of this. But we do not see anything
of that kind. The Pakistan President
says, no useful purpose will be served
by his coming to India and meeting
our Prime Minister for discussing the
Kashmir problem. I simply cannot
understand it.

Sir, I think this treaty hag been all
to our disadvantage.

16 hrs.

Shri Asoka Mehta: Mr. Chairman,
we have to consider the treaty, the
terms of the treaty, the contents of the
agreement as also the context in
which it has been finalised. As far as
the terms of the treaty are concerned,
it is obvious, as has been very well
and very eloquently pointed out by
the previous speaker, and as he read
out extracts from the opinions expres-
sed by the leading newspapers in the
country, there is not a single news-
paper in India which has favourably
reviewed the termg of that treaty; not
only that, the words used by the news-
papers are sometimes stronger, and
they have been surcharged with the
same kind of emotion that was rightly
expressed here by the Member who
comes from Rajasthan. This sort of
feeling is there because we have,
after 10 or 12 years of negotiation,
agreed to terms which cannot not only
be acclaimed but which cannot be
justified as fair.

The suggestion wag that western
rivers should go to Pakistan and the
eastern rivers should come to India.
If that was the suggestion, it would
mean the distribution of 75 per cent
of the Indus basin waterg to Pakistan
and 25 per cent to us. But in the
treaty it is 4'1, that is to say, 80 per
cent goes to Pakistan and 20 per cent
comes to India.

The Indus basin water irrigation
system is the largest irrigation system
connected with any single system of
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‘rivers in the world, and it is a peculiar
system, because the entire system was
developed without reservoirs and other
things being built up and it was orga-
nised in accordance with the run of
the river. Now, nature and, up to a
‘point man, seemed to have conspired
against India, Pakistan has had re-
markable advantages gainst us. The
per captia use of irrigation facilities
today is 3% times in Pakistan to that in
India. Now this needs to be correct-
ed. What will happen under the
treaty?

We are happy, at least I am happy,
that there are International organisa-
tiong and friendly governments in the
world that are going to help Pakistan
to develop these reservoirs. We are
happy that these resources are going
to be developed. I was surprised that
.some Communist journals criticised
me when I raised this question on the
floor of the House the other day and
they said “Shri Asoka Mehta should
have denounced the part that the
World Bank has played on this”. I do
not know what it means, The World
Bank has facilitated the solving of this
problem; whether that solution is
wholly acceptable to us or not is a
different matter, I do not think we
gain anything by denouncing those
who try to play a friendly role. But
the point is that with their efforts,
with their co-operation and with their
ass'stance Pakistan will be able to
-develop the resources and a lot of sur-
plus will continue to flow into the sea.
The surplus there will be, because
Pakistan is a surplus area today, and
Pakistan will continue to be a surplus
‘area. After the distribution of waters
under this treaty Pakistan will permit
very valuable water to flow into the
seas, even after the fullest of develop-
ment. We, after the fullest of deve-
lopment, will always be short. We have
larger irrigable areas and our supplies
of water ave not adequate. Pakistan
has more water than its irrigable area,
I can give you the figures, they are
there, but I do not want to take your
time.

Therefore, it is a peculiar position
and this position is being trotted out,
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as has been pointed out, by our agree.
ing to hold our hands, to put off our
claims for 10 or 15 years more and
by paying a large amount of money.
A large amount of money is being
paid against which only a small sum
is adjusted, dues by Pakistan for the
waters we have spared. Barring those
Rs. 6 crores, which will be set off
against this claim of Rs. 83 crores, the
other debts have not been settled, The
problem of Kashmir, of course, is very
important, But if financial payments
are to be made—that was the point
that I was making—if huge financial
payments are to be made, surely one
should take into consideration the obli-
gation that the other side owes to us.
This is a peculiar arrangement where-
in the other side’s obligations are not
brought into the focus at all and uni-
laterally we come forward to make

. significant concessions,

As there are many speakers, I am
not going into the details; you have
been kind enough to say that I can
take a little more time, but I do not
want to encroach upon the valuable
time of others and so within the time
allotted to me I will immediately turn
to the main problem. The solution of
the canal water problem, we thought,
was a part of the greater effort, the
general effort that was being made by
the leaders of the two countries to
bring about better relations between
the two countries. Firstly, the fron-
tier question, the rectification of the
frontier question was brought out.
Then certain economic and financial
payments were sought to be solved,
and we thought here is a step taken
towards the solution of the canal water
problem which will make it possible
for the two countries to come together.
The President of Pakistan was advo-
cating even common defence arrange-
ments and there were distinguished
countrymen of ours, like my friend,
Shri Jai Prakash Narayan, who felt
that our country should respond to
that suggestion, I believe that Shri
Rajaji also wanted that we should
respond to that appeal. Again, an
atmosphere was being created where
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we felt that even though we are fragm._
ented, eyen though we are sundered
about, here is a healing process where-
by we will be able to come together,
and what does it matter, it may be
a price worth paying if the healing
process is created. But on the morrow
on the signing of the treaty, as my
friend pointed out, the whole context
has seemed to have changed radically.
The whole history, as you know, of the
claim made out by the Muslim League
in the past is that a certain claim is
put forward, the moment it is satisfied
it is made an excuse or pretext for
making further claims. This I have
described in a book which I wrote
some years ago called The Communal
Triangle. Now this is a thin end of
the wedge, Every concession becomes
a thin end of the wedge, We thought
that the context has changed. But
what is it that we find?

Now it is said that though the west-
ern waters have been assigned to
Pakistan, the source areas must be
under Pakistan. Therefore, the Presi-
dent of Pakistan has told some foreign
newspapers that the desilting opera-
tions have to be carried on. You can-
not hope to have all the water re-
sources that have been assigned to
Pakistan until and unless Pakistan is
permitted to carry on desilting opera-
tions and, therefore, the source areas
must be in their hands.

From the western waters we are
using only 0°75 per cent acre feet of
water and we are entitled to use a fur.
ther 0.75 per cent acre feet. That is
all we will be able to draw from the
western waters that have been assign-
ed to them, From the eastern waters
we are giving a considerable amount
of water, though the waters in princi-
ple are assigned to us.

Now we are faced with this new
problem that the Kashmir dispute,
instead of getting settled, instead of
the solution of the canal waters pro-
blem leading us, helping us towards
the easing of the tentions in that area,
have really aggravated the situation.
I think the hon. Member who spoke
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before me was quite right wen he said
that the whole atmosphere in the
country has been expecting some kind
of understanding wifh Pakistan. We
are prepared to make sacrifices, we
would stand by whatever concessions
the Government feels necessary to
make provided the Government can
show the returns, that a different
spirit, a different atmosphere and a
different response has been created.
Surely, the Government cannot take
advantage of this spirit of accommoda-
tion and goodwill on our side in order
to feed the fires on the other side,
And that is precisely what has been
happening,

If the context had been right, then
probably we would have accepted it
even if it is not equitable, even if we
feel on. merit a better treaty should
have been negotiated. When the treaty
was under negotiation many of us re-
mained quiet, many of us refrain-
ed from raising questions which
were very relevant, because we felt
that perhaps through the instrumen-
tality of this treaty, though we have
been fragmented and sundered apart,
may be slowly we may be brought
together, not as part of one single
country or one single government but
two countries that are developing the
habit of working together in co-opera-
tion and harmony.

That was the hope. That was the
expectation. These expectations have
been belied. Surely, the Government
of India had far more information.
They had or they ought to have their
hand on the pulse of realities in Pakis-
tan, Knowingly if they did this then
here is a price wich has been paid and
in return we are only confronted with
more difficult, almost a menacing situa-
tion. Therefore I believe that Shri
Mahanty was quite right when he said
that we have not so much to seek in-
formation or any kind of explanation
from the hon. Minister of Irrigation
and Power. The information that we
have to seek is from the hon. Prime
Minister because given the right kind
of context many of us here would have
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said that the hon. Minister has done
a very fine job because that is in the
larger context, But now that the con-
text has proved to be wholly inhos-
pitable to us, I do not know what the
hon, Minister of Irrigation and Power
will be able to tell us. He will have
to say that this is a one-sided treaty.
It was entered into for a certain pur-
pose and that purpose has not been
achieved.

I am surprised that in spite of the
assurance given by the hon. Minister
that the hon. Prime Minister will be
here to speak, he is not here. He
should have been here because, as Shri
Mathur has very rightly pointed out,
here is an issue on which the entire
country is deeply and profoundly agi-
tated. It is a kind of second partition
which we are experiencing. It is a
kind of reopening all the wounds that
we had hoped had started healing.
This is being done again with the
signature of our hon. Prime Minister.

That happened in 1947 with regard
to partition without wunderstanding,
realising and making sure that it will
not lead to carnage on all sides. Peo-
ple are entitled to make one mistake,
but we are making far-reaching con-
cessions and do not assure ourselves
that those concessions are going to
bring the desired results, Surely no
Government is entitled to make mis-
takes twice, That is why the country
is deeply and profoundly agitated. I
can understand the feeling in this
House that to try to dispose of a
matter of this kind in two hours is not
allowing this House to reflect fully and
adequately the feelings of the people
in this country. The newspapers have
done it, but it is the privilege of this
House fo be wholly and fully reflec-
tive of the feelings in the country. In
the limited time that has been given
to us that cannot be done. I think
a lot more time is to be given. We
need to go into this affair more fully.
We need the presence of the hon.
Prime Minister here. Against all these
handicaps all that one could say is that
on this matter the country feels that
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it has not been given the leadership.
I would say that the country has been
let down by those whom the country
had been accustomed to trust.

Shri A. C. Guha: Mr, Chairman,
Sir, an agreement of this nature can-
not be hundred per cent acceptable
to any side and the country and the
House would naturally be prepared
to accept a deal which would at least
be fair to India and fair also to the
other country, The country has been
deeply disappointed. There is a feel-
ing that whenever we have been
negotiating any agreement with Pakis-
tan the interests of the country have
been sacrificed, perhaps with an over-
anxiety on our part to placate Pakis-
tan.

Shri Asoka Mehta has referred to
partition and said that that wag the
first mistake and this is the second
mistake. But in between there have
been other agreements also with Pakis-
tan in which the interests of India and
Indian citizen were not properly pro-
tected. I shall come to them later on.

16°15 hrs,
[SeR1 HEDA in the Chair]

The Indus basin covers a wide area.
26 million acres of irrigable land are
in India and 39 million acres of irri-
gable land lie in Pakistan. Out of the
26 million acres of land in India only
19 per cent have got irrigation facili-
ties, but in Pakistan out of the 39 mil-
lion acres of land 54 per cent already
have got irrigation facilities. In any
agreement regarding the waters of the
Indus basin for irrigation this point
should have been taken into consi-
deration. The proportion of the land
in the two countries is three-fifths and
two-fifths,  Three-fifths of the total
area lies in Pakistan and two-fifths in
India.

Again, of the three-fifths in Pakistan,
54 per cent have already got irriga-
tion facilities, but only 19 per cent of
the two-fifths area in India have got
irrigation facilities. In any case of the
total area of 64 million acres of land
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in the Indus basin, on the basis of land
which India possesses India should
have got at least 40 per cent of .the
waters of the Indus basin, but under
the treaty only 20 per cent of the
Indus basin water will flow into India
and 80 per cent will go to Pakistan,
This is a serious mistake in the agree-
ment. There is a relevant question to
ask, namely, whether Pakistan will
need that 80 per cent water or whe-
ther Pakistan will have the capacity to
utilise that 80 per cent water.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: It
will flow into the sea.

Shri A. C. Guha: The two previ-
ous speakers have stated that this very
important and useful water will flow
into the sea and go for no purpose
whereas in India several important
schemes will have to be abandoned at
least for years.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: Not
for years but for all time because we
have no water and Rajasthan will have
to go without water,

Shri A. C, Guha: About Rajasthan
I think Shri Mathur has given vent to
the passion and feeling of frustration
in Rajasthan. I do not know whether
the negotiating authorities on behalf
of India had any consideration about
the Rajasthan Canal and the develop-
ment programmes of Rajasthan, More-
over, I think some important projects
in Himachal Pradesh based on the
Chenab River have also to be aban-
doned. I do not know whether the
Government have any idea as to how
to carry out these development works
without the water which will flow by
the Chenab through Himachal Pra-
desh.

From every point of view, from the
point of view of our requirements and
the requirements of Pakistan, this
deal has been quite unfair to India
and has been over-generous to Pakis-
tan, The more regrettable thing is
that waters which India would need
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badly would be allowed to flow into
the sea unutilised and yet we shall
be denied the opportunity of develop-
ing our own land with that water.

Another thing is about the payment.
Pakistan will get grants and not loans
to the tune of about Rs. 400 crores.
They will require about Rs. 450 crores
to build their link canals. India will
also require over Rs 100 crores to
build her link canals, but we shall get
only Rs. 30 crores and that too not as
grants but as loans.

An Hon, Member: Rs. 28 crores.

Shri A. C. Guha: Yes Rs. 28 crores
or to be precise about Rs. 27 crores—
Rs. 15 crores and Rs. 12 crores from
the United States and from the World
Bank respectively—but not as grants,
but as loans. Of course, that depends
on the generosity of the other coun-
tries. If they give grants to Pakistan
and not to us, we have nothing to dis-
pute, But why should India have
agreed to make a payment of Rs. 83
crores to Pakistan without at least set-
tling our financial dispute with Pakis-
tan and that too in sterling? As has
been suggested, if at all this Rs. 83
crores has to be paid, it should have
been paid in kind or at least in rupee
and not in sterling. Considering the
very desperate foreign exchange posi-
tion of India, it was the height of
folly to agree that Rs. 83 crores would
be given to Pakistan in sterling at
the rate of Rs. 8:3 crores every year.

As I have stated, in most of the
agreements with Pakistan, the inter-
ests of Indian citizens and the Indian
nation have not been properly protect.
ed by the negotiating party on behalf
of India. -

In this connection, I should also refer
to the Agreement which is known as
the Nehru-Noon Agreement, I think
yesterday, there was a debate in the
West Bengal Assembly and the Chief
Minister has stated that it was not con-
sulted and his Government also was
not consulted while the Government
of India agreed to hand over Berubari
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to Pakistan. In West Bengal there is
unanimous opposition of Berubari.
Why this anxiety in every case? Start-
ing from the Nehru-Liaquat Agree-
ment in 1950, in every agreement we
have found that the Indian interests
have been sacrificed to placate Pakis-
tan. With what result? Has Pakis-
tan responded in any friendly manner?
Have we got any friendly response
from Pakistan? If Pakistan was in a
mood to consider India’s case in a
friendly manner, we may have agreed
to make some sacrifice. Why should
we make all these sacrifices to placate
Pakistan when Pakistan is not in a
mood to be on friendly terms with
India.

Before concluding, I should refer to
another matter, There are some rivers
on the eastern side also. What ar-
rangements have been made about the
development of the waters of these
rivers? I think from the Karnafuli
project, certain portions of Indian ter-
ritory are going to be inundated. India
has agreed. What will we get in
return for that generosity? We are
not getting anything out of that, I do
not know whether there is an agree-
ment for the supply of any power ., . .

The Deputy Minisier of Irrigation
and Power (Shri Hathi): Yes.

Shri A. C. Guha: If there is some
agreement, will that be commensurate
to the loss in the area that would be
inundated by the Karnafuli project?
There are other rivers also on the
eastern side. What would be done
about the development of those
rivers? I should refer at least to one
river which flows in Tripura and
Cachar. I just forget the name of
that river. My hon. friend Shri Hathi
may give the name. That river is also
in dispute. Without utilising the
waters of that river, there cannot be
any development in Tripura and
Cachar. Before coming to any settle-
ment on any single point, I think all
these points should have also been
~unsidered.

We have been supplying water to
Pakistan for the last twelve years.
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Instead of 10 years, we are going to
exiend the period to 25 years. Already
12 years have elapsed. Another 10
years are agreed upon. Another
extension of 3 years has also been
agreed upon by this treaty. I am
sure Paikstan will take advantage of
that period of 3 years also. I am
also doubtful whether Pakistan will
make payment for these three years as
stipulated in the treaty, because...

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: That
would be made by the World Bank.
That is the responsibility of the
World Bank.

Shri A. C. Guha: Yes, I am sorry.
That would be paid by the Indus
Basin Commission. That would not
come out of Pakistan’s funds. I am
sorry. That amount, we shall get. It
is not a question of money. It is a
question of water. For three years,
water will flow into Pakistan and per-
haps flow inio the Arabian sea and
will not be available for development
work in India. For 25 years we have
agreed to allow the waters of the
Indus Basin to flow into Pakistan,
taking only 20 per cent of the water
for us after 25 years. Even within
this period of 25 years, we must get
very much less than our requirements
for development of the Indus basin
territories. I think the Government
should take into consideration the
feeling in the country before coming
to any agreement.

It is the privilege of the executive
to come to international agreements.
There is no dispute about that. The
executive may say that they have
considered it right. That may be the
attitude of a totalitarian government,
a totalitarian executive. The execu-
tive of this country is responsible
to this Parliament. As a democratic
authority they must take into consi-
deration the opinion and the feeling
of the country and this House before
coming to any agreement of this
nature. T do not mean previous appro-
val of the House. I mean onlv a
prover assessment of the feeling.
Repeatedly there have been mistakes.
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Repeatedly the interests of India and
indian citizens and the Indian nation
have been sacrificed to placate Pakis-
tan. I hope similar mistakes will not
be done in future.

Dr. Krishnaswami (Chingleput):
Sir, this agreement with our neigh-
bour raises profound emotions and I
am, therefore, not surprised to find
my hon. friend Shri Harish Chandra
Mathur, for whom I have great res-
pec:, expressing himseif so strongly.
I have given considerable thought to
this question, especially as criticisms
of this Treaty have appeared in
numerous papers. But, after having
given considerable thought to this
question, I must point out categori-
cally to my colleagues here in this
House that we have reached an
agreement on terms which only a
farseeing Government could have
accepted. I know that I will be rais-
ing a great deal of controversy. But,
I should like, with your permission,
to ask this House to consider this
problem in its proper perspective.

In 1948, we enunciated the doctrine
that while, undoubtedly, we were
in physical possession of all these
rivers, we were going to try
for an equitable seitlement. In
1954, when Shri Nanda was the
Minister for Irrigation and Power,
he had also pointed out that certain
proposals of the World Bank were
before us and that these were to be
considered. I should like, with your
permission, to go into certain aspects
of this agreement and then consider
the other political issues which are
linked with it. I want to separate
this agreement from the other politi-
cal issues because it is necessary to
find out how far this is really in the
interests of our country before we
decide whether it will contribute to a
greater amount of understanding with
Pakistan or not.

What are the terms of the Agree-
ment? The three eastern rivers
which in 1947 irrigated about 4 million
acres in Pakistan and 5 million acres
in India, will, as a result of this
ireaty be used exclusively by India.
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in anowher few years, we will have
the opportunity of irrigaung 15
mullion acres in India. Iln order to
compensate for tius loss of 4 mullion
acres 1n Pakistan, 1t was suggested by
us that we snould have certain
replacement works consiructed in
Pakuistan. The cost of these replace-
ment works were worked out by our
Indian Engineers and it was put at
about Rs. 83'3 crores. This would
have been considered to be a reason-
able term. As one realises, the Gov-
ernment of Pakistan was not willing
to consider even this term. In 1959,
considerable difficulties faced our
Government when this question was
taken up for consideration. Indeed,
but for the fact that the World Bank
played an active part, and a dynamic
part at that, we would not have had
any agreement at all.

Shri Tangamani (Madurai): Why
did they? i

Dr. Krishnaswami: I shall tell you,
because it is necessary for you to
know. I know that the World Bank
is a bete-noire to certain political
parties. But, that is neither here nor
there. We have to consider this
quesiion from a detached point of
view. I shall stand or fall by the
views that I express on this question.

I should like to point out that but
for the fact that the World Bank
intervened in this matter, it would
not have been possible to reach any
sort of agreement. Let me proceed
with the other aspect of the case.

Let us remember that most of these
canals were developed when Pakistan
was part of undivided India. That
was why the bulk of the western
rivers really flowed into the territory
of Pakistan. The political partition
brought in its wake certain difficulties
and certain strange consequences.
Even in 1947 we realised that about
10 lakh acres were being irrigated by
the western rivers. We have taken
care to see that we should have ano-
ther 7 lakh acres at least irrigated
by these western rivers and the rest
being used by Pakistan.

In any agreement there can always
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be uerects. bur, L do want to say
that ts agreement has ceriaiuy
sateguaraed our lnierests to a very
large ex.ent. Wheuwer 1t will lead to
gredier understanaing witn rakisian
or not is a debatabie matter. Bui, I
do want to poiwnt ou: that but for ums
agreemeat had been reacned, we
would stll have had a staiemate for
a considerabie time. I know and I
respect the views of my hon. friend
Shri Harish Chandra Matnur very
much, who has today spoken with
considerable emotion. But, I would
like him to consider the positive gains
that have accrued from this agree-
ment. I proceed on the assumption
that the terms of the agreement would
be observed. What are the benefits
that would accure to our country? As
I pointed out, we will have increased
the acreage from the eastern rivers
from 5 to 15 million acres. Indeed,
an increase of 4 million acres in our
country would lead to increase in
income of Rs. 100 crores. This is also
a factor which we must take into
account,

Now, let me deal with the other
point as to why the World Bank
came in. Unless we agreed to the
development of the Indus basin, it
would not have been possible for any
sort of agreement to have been achiev-
ed which would lead to a proper and
equitable sharing of the waters. The
old-fashioned attitude of saying that
just because we are in physical pos-
session of the rivers, it is open to us
to make other countries deserts, does
not appeal to me, and do not think
even sound international lawyers
would ever agree or accept this
approach.

Sardar Igbal Singh: Who says so?
India has never taken up that attitude?

Dr. Krishnaswami: That is why I
say that in 1948 the logical attitude
was adopted that we should have an
equitable solution.

Shri Tangamani: Forty-six per cent
of the water is still falling in the
Arabian sea,
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Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: We
should aiuow them ame only for the
repiacement. The question of pay-
ment was never there. This is an
1dea wmuch was born later on,

Mr. Chairman: The hon. Member
had his opportunity.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: He is
explaining. 1 made the point because
he 1s wanting to convince us,

Dr. Krishnaswami: Whether I suc-
ceed in convincing my hon. friend
Shri Mathur or not, I should certainly
make my point clear so that he and
others in the country may understand
what I am driving at.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: Let
me assure you that I am amenable to
arguments from you.

Dr. Krishnaswami: I am very much
flatiered. What I am suggesting to
my friend with great respect is that
we agreed that there should be a
replacement to compensate for this
loss of 40 lakh acres which were
already under cultivation in Pakistan,
and it would not have been equitable
on our part to have said that we were
not going to construct some replace-
ment works. The question which
ought to be asked is: who determined
the cost? The cost was determined
entirely by Indian engineers, and . it
was their estimate that was really
accepted ultimately by the World
Bank and the Government of
Pakistan,

This is a very difficult agreement to
have been reached. I know that if
all aspects of this agreement had
been placed in their proper perspec-
tive, including the role played by the
World Bank, probably many distin-
guished citizens in our country would
have had second thoughts on this
agreement. In my judgment, it is a
highly constructive agreement, for,
next to the Marshall Plan, historically,
this is the biggest international co-
operative effort, and unlike the Mar-
shall Plan the impetus has come not
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from one country, but an internation-
ally consututed organusation and
through the dedicated efforts of a
single person, the Vice-President of
the World Bank. It requires a great
deal of effort to get all these countries
together to contribute, and may I add
that along with the others, along with
the politicians who played a part in
this agreement, distinguished engi-
neers of our country have also played
a not inconsiderable part in having
this agreement reached? There may
be certain defects in certain details.

Shri Mahanty: May I ask him a
question? What was the locus standi
of the World Bank in a dispute bet-
ween two sovereign countries?

Dr. Krishnaswami: The World Bank
did not come here to settle any dis-
pute. It came here to play a cons-
tructive role, and both the countries
wanted it to play a constructive role.
It was open to a sovereign State like
India to reject the terms of the World
Bank if it did not like them. It was
open equally to Pakistan to reject
them if it did not like them.

Shri Mahanty: Parliament never
knew it.

Dr. Krishnaswami: Parliament was
aware of many of these things, but
if the hon. Member did not raise that
issue at that stage, it was his fault. I
certainly think that the World Bank
really has had the opportunity to play
this part, and I think we should cer-
tainly be glad that it did play this
part.

There are certain other defects in
this agreement to which I should
have brought the attention of the
House, but I do wish to point out that
this agreement must be seen in its
ful] perspective,

I am not for a moment suggesting
that we should immediately trust any
Government merely because this
.agreement has been signed, but the
possibilities of a better future have

AGRAHAYANA 9, 1882 (SAKA)

Indus Waters 3200

been opened up as a result of this
agreement. We may have many tough
problems in the near future, but it is
my hope that as a result of this
agreement the two countries may try
to come toge:her, so that both of us
may be united in the hour of crisis
wnen we have to meet some other
peril on the northern border—and it
mught be necessary for us to be
realy united in order to meet the
new menace that is facing us on the
northern border. But I do wish to
point out that in all these agreements,
no.hing will be satisfactory to any
one nation. It is perfectly true that if
we had come to an agreement earlier,
if we had more reasonable men in
Pakistan to really have this thing
done, the World Bank need not have
come inio the picture, but the World
Bank, by having come and made the
necessary contributions, never mind
whether it is to any particular country
or not, has made it possible for this
great region, and I consider this a
great region, consisiing of these two
countries, to really have a fairly
equitable and proper sharing of the
rivers,

I venture to think in having initiat-
ed this discussion we have done a wise
thing, but I also wish to express the
hope that we may be given more time
when the Supplementary - Demand
for Grant comes in, so that we
may go more into the details of the
Indus Waters Treaty, discuss some of
the limitations that attach to it, and
express our views on them in a cate-
gorical manner.
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Shri Tangamani: The Indus Waters
Treaty of 1960 which was signed by
our Prime Minister and the President
of Pakistan at Karachi on the 19th
September, 1960, has evoked considera-
ble interest. Many speakers have al-
ready referred to the comments of the
newspapers in this country. Particu-
larly, the comments in this country
have been critical, and even those
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papers which have welcomed this
treaty have given only their qualified
support. But uniike this, we find that
the newspapers in Pakisian have ge-
nerally welcomed the treaty with all
its implications.

I would like to say that the Par-
liament here was in session till the
9th September, 1960. This treaty was
entered into on the 19th September,
1960. Surely, it would have been
possible for Government to place
before us at least the main purport
of this treaty. They couid have at
least indicated certain provisions and
taken into confidence the State Gov-
ernments concerned, and also the
Members of this House as to how it
is going to affect us. Assuming that
this House could not be taken into
confidence, at least, the leaders of the
recognised all-India parties could have
been consulted, before such a treaty
was entered into. I do not say that
the Government of India have no
right to enter into a treaty with a
foreign country and ratify it even
without referring it to Parliament.
But I submit that in future, the prac-
tice that I have suggested would be a
very salutary one.

As the House is very well aware,
there have been prolonged negotia-
tions ever since 1948 over the sharing
of these waters. A formula was sug-
gested by the World Bank in the year
1954. These are the elements of the
World Bank’s proposals:

“(a) The waters of the three
Eastern Rivers (Ravi, Beas
and Sutlej) should be for the
use of India;

the waters of the three West-
ern Rivers (Indus, Jhelum
and Chenab) should be for
the use of Pakistan;

(b

~

(c) there should be a Transition
Period, during which Pakis-
tan would construct a system
of link canals to transfer
water from the Western
Rivers to replace the irriga-
tion uses in Pakistan hitherto
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met from the Easiern Rivers;

and

(d) India should pay the cost of
constructing these replace-
ment link canals.”.

Originally, this transition period,
as suggested by the World Bank, was
five years, but today it has become
ten plus three years.

Coming to the treaty itself, I do
not think anyone will have any word
to say against the preamble. The
preamble to the treaty recognises the
need for fixing and delimiting in a
spirit of goodwill and friendship the
rights and obligations of the Govern-
ment of India and the Government of
Pakistan concerning the use of the
waters of the Indus rivers system,

Because of shortage of time, I shall
rush through certain points, without
developing them. One point which I
would like to mention in the begin-
ning itself is that the World Bank did
take interest, and the interest can be
seen from the fact that simultaneously
with the signing of the Indus Waters
Treaty, an international financial
agreement was also executed in
Karachi by representatives of the
Governments of Australia, Canada,
Germany, New Zealand, Pakistan, the
United Kingdom and the United
States, and of the World Bank. I am
quoting this from a World Bank
Release which says:

“This Agreement creates an
Indus Basin Development Fund of
almost $900 million to finance the

construction of irrigation and
other works in Pakistan conse-
quential on the Treaty settle-
ment.”.

Now, what are the main points in
this treaty? Firstly, we are going to
contribute Rs. 83 crores. I believe
the original estimate of the World
Bank came up to only Rs. 61 crores.
Already, a supplementary Demand is
before this House for over Rs. 8.25
crores. Secondly, we shall go on giv-~



3209 Discussion re:

[Shri Tangamani]

ing the wate.s from Sutlej, Beas and
Ravi for ten years, which is the trans-
sition period; and these ten years
which commence from 1st April, 1960
may be extended for another three
yearg at the request of Pakistan, if
not beyond 1973. Thirdly, the total
waters of the Indus sysetm will be
distributed in the ratio of 80:20 bet-
ween Pakisian and India. Fourthiy,
the western rivers of Indus, Jhelum
and Chenab are assigned to Pakistan
and the three eastern rivers of Ravi,
Beas and Sutlej to India.

There are certain pointg which have
been left out. I would like to mention
them briefly. First, I would like to
say taht there has not been give and
take. It has been more of ‘give’. Cer-
tain outstanding issues like the canal
waters dues have not been settled.
The outstanding partition debts are
yet to be settled, in spite of the talks
our Finance Minister has had with
the Finance Minister of Pakistan. The
Kashmir issue is still pending. We
can have flood control facilities only
if it does not affect Pakistan. The
proposal for a dam over Chenab has
been dropped. The Mangla Dam
work proceeds in ‘Azad’ Kashmir. The
status of ‘Azad’ Kashmir ig still in the
balance. Pakistan expects Rs. 300 cro-
res for its development works. We
give Rs. 83 and odd crores for the
purpose.

Here, 1 would like to give a brief
quotation from what President Ayub
Khan has stated in the Foreign Affairs
Quarterly of July 1960. He is report-
ed to have said:

‘“Pakistan has openly and un-
equivocally cast its lot with the
West....We have shut ourselves
off almost completely from the
possibility of any major assistance
from the Communist block. We
do not believe in hunting wi‘h the
hound and running with the hare.
We wish to follow, and are fol-
lowing, a clear and unambiguous
path....The English-speaking
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world ought to feel a special res-
ponsibility to assist Pakistan. It
is not a claim. It ig in fact the
dictate of history”.

This is briefly the sentiment expressed
by the President of Pakistan. This
has been confirmed in his subsequent
statements also. I do not want to
judge the people of Pakistan from the
pronouncements of the President of
Pakistan. I am only indicating the
trend of the present Government there
and why the World Bank has taken
special interest in the particular
dispute.

Regarding Punjab, the hon. Mem-
ber who initiated the discussion point-
ed out how Punjab will be affected as
a result of this. Without going into
details. I would say that the main
problem, which was mentioned at the
AICC in Chandigarh also, is the ques-
tion of water-logging. Expert; have
stated that for meeting this, we re-
quire at least Rs. 50 crores. But what
is it that we find? In the Third Plan,
only a provision of Rs. 20 c.ores has
been made. An acreage of 35 lakhs
is already' water-logged; 30 lakh acres
are threatened and another 30 lakh
acres are still in danger of being
water-logged. Nearly 9 million acres
of land are going to be water-logged.
While the benefit which Punjab was
getting is being taken away by this
settlement, it is necessary that the atti-
tude of Government must also so
change that Punjab is given much
more allocation than she is given for
preventing water-logging.

Having said this, I would again
state that this issue has got to be set-
tled fairly. In the settlement now
reached, more weightage is on one
side without consequent benefits which
ought to accrue to the other party.

Shri Mahanty (Dhenkanal): In the
very short time at my disposal, I will
merely confine myself to certain points
without developing those. But be-
fore I begin, I have to quote from the
November issue of Bhagirath, which
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is a journa] published by the Publica-
tions Divisinon under the authority of
the Ministry of Irrigation and Power.
This journal in itg editorial under the
caption ‘A memorable agreement’ has
to say this, about the Cana]l Waters
Treaty: ’

“India has agreed to concede 80
per cent of the waters of the
Indus system to Pakistan and
abandoned important projects on
the Chenab in Himachal Pradesh,
which could provide water for the
development of additional areas
in Rajasthan. She hag given
Pakistan altogether a quarter of
a century to build replacement
works. In addition, she has
agreed to make g large flnancial
contribution to Pakistan towards
the cost of replacement works”.

In another place it is stated that:

“This attitude of steady nego-
ciations have lasted over more
than a decade and called for consi-
derable patience and sacrifice on
the part of India and involved a
heavy gift of money and water
supply from our rivers for a
further period of 10 years with
both of which India could well do
for herself in this crucial period
of the growth of our economy.”

This being the view of the official
journal, the limited issue before us
today is whether the unconscionable
price that India has been made to pay
for the doubtful commodity of good
neighbourliness has been actuated by
realism, whether we have been able
to handle this affair in the spirit that
we had expected or whether we had
surrendered to outside pressure which
could have been avoided.

Before I proceed to the next point
I would like to invite the attention of
the House—and also remind the hon.
Prime Minister—to the statement he
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made at a Press confeence on May 14,
1959, commenting on the World Bank's
proposal. He had said this at that
point of time.

“Financially very big, and
rather overwhelming to our
thinking, and the period is rather
long.”

But, here we find that same over-
whelming amount and that same long
period in the treaty. We would like
to be told for what purpose the Gov-
ernment of India had been made a
party to this treaty and the country
has been forced to accept a treaty in
which an overwhelming financial com-
mitment has been made and the period
has been lengthened.

Then, there ig another question; and
that, according to me, is a very funda-
menta]l question. I have not time; I
cannot go into the genesis of this.
But before the World Bank came into
the picture, I believe in 1952 or 1954,
the Inter-Dominion Agreement bet-
ween India nad Pakistan which was
signed in New Delhi on 4th April,
1948, was the basis. The issue in that
treaty was very limited. I would
invite your attention to that Inter-
Dominion Agreement on Cana] Waters,
of 1948. In paragraph 2, the issues
were specifically mentioned and limit-
ed. The issues were:

“East Punjab had revived the
flow of water into these canals on
certain conditions of which two
are disputed by West Punjab.”

It arises out of the contention in
paragraph 1 which ig the rate to be
levied of seniorage charges for water
and the other is the question of the
capital cost of the Madhopur Head
works and carrigr channels to be
taken into account.

I venture to submit that these two
issues were limited. One was whether
India was entitled to seniorage charg-
e; from West Punjab on account of
the supply of water from our eastern
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construction of the Madhopur Head-
works.

But we find that in this treaty the
scope has been much widened; and
the seniorage charges—certainly it is
not the engineers that can appreciate
that problem and they had no business
to dabble with these problems and
they must have left it to jurists and
lawyers and Prime Ministers—surren-
dered. Seniorage charges are con-
nected with the claim of sovereignty.
We had rightly claimed our soverei-
gnty over the eastern rivers. Wag it
ever disputed? Was it ever disputed
that India, juridically constituted as
she was, had her full unfettered sov-
ereign rights over the eastern rivers.
Therefore, she had claimed seniorage
charges. At that point of time,
Pakistan insisted that the two issues
be referred to the World Bank for
interpretation; whether India was en-
titled to seniorage charges and whe-
ther she should pay the cost of the
Madhopur Headworks.

At that point of time the Govern-
ment of India boldly resisted this sug-
gestion, The Government of India in-
sisted that there was no case for in-
terpretation of the agreement. Here
what was necessary was implementa-
tion of but not interpretation. At
this distance of time, I think, the
World Court would have been the
more appropriate body, it would have
been the most judicial body and it
could gone into this dispute between
India and Pakistan, It could have gone
into the dispute between India and
Pakistan, I wonder why the World
Bank was entrusted with this job. It
pains me to say. I hope the hon,
Prime Minister will forgive me that
never in the history of two sovereign
nations were a group of commercial
bankers entrusted with arbitrating
upon such issues of great moment.
Why was not this left to the World
Court to determine? They could de-
termine whether India wag entitled to
seniorage charges, whether India
should be called upon to pay the con-
struction cost of the Madhopur head-
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works and carrier channels, Today we
are made to pay Rs. 83 crores in
Sterling, when our foreign exchange
position is bad. I hope the hon, Prime
Minister will tell us why it was in
Sterling and not in Rupees.

17 hrs.

Again, I would ask whether the Gov-
ernment of India took this House into
confidence before entrusting the World
Bank with this job. I am going to be
told that this appeared in the news-
papers and if I did not take care of that
it was not their responsibility. But
may I say that in a parliamentary form
of Government that we are experi-
menting in this country, the Govern-
ment has to take Parliament into con-
fidence at every stage, If we have
not taken into account what has
appeared in the newspapers, it is cer-
tainly no excuse for the Government
for evading the issue.

Mr, Chairman: The hon. Member’s
time is up.

Shri Mahanty: Time being short,
let me tell him that it has acted
against the interests of our country.
The Rajasthan canal system will now
starve for water, I am told that from
1961 some water will be available for
the kharif crops but for rabi crops
water can be had only after 1973. You
are also going to starve the plains
of Himachal Pradesh which needed
water, This is a Treaty of surrender
which we could have well resisted and
I am sorry that the Prime Minister
put his signature in it.

The Prime Minister and Minister of
External Affairs (Shri Jawaharlal
Nehru): Sir, I have listened to the
speech made by the hon, Member op-
posite just now and I have read
the notes of some other speeches made
by hon. Members on this subject with
considerable amount of distress, I
am distressed that a matter of this
importance which has come before
this House in the shape of numerous
statements, questions, etc.—I do not
know how many scores of times—a
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matter which is concerned not only
the present but the future—should be
treated, I say so with great respect—
so lightly and casually and in such a
narrow minded spirit.

Here is this question which arose
more than 12 or 13 years ago and for
these long years, we, as a Govern-
ment, and our engineers and others
have been battling with all their in-
telligence, energy and might over it,
From time to time various statements
have been made in this House—not
very detailed statements because the
position has changed there—but short
of coming to this House and discussing
the actual final terms, the House has
been kept informed more or less of all
the development. It is a little difficult
for me or for my colleague the Min-
ister of Irrigation and Power to dis-
cuss this long treaty in detail or any
part of it without considering the
whole context, because it is the con-
text that we have to consider, not
a particular bit, If the hon. Member
asks me why Rs, 80 crores and odd,
well, I cannot give an answer about
Rs. 80 crores and odd except to relate
it to the whole context and say
whether in that context it was right
for us to agree to that sum or not. If
the hon, Member asks me why we
have agreed to give more water here
or there, for this period or that
period, again, I say, it has to be con-
sidereq in the context of things,

Sir, after all these many years of
my being connected with this matter—
I think from May, 1948—I was also
one of the signatories to the statement
to which a reference has just been
made—being connected with the ups
and downs—it has not been a plea-
sant period and I felt greatly frustrat-
ed often—and with all my knowledge
about this matter, I should like to
say—not that my word should neces-
sarily be the one to be accepted by
hon. Members—quite clearly and defl-
nitetly that it is a good treaty for India
and I have no doubt about it in my
mind.
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Naturally, one can always say that
instead of Rs, 80 crores if we pay Rs,
50 crores we will be gainers by Rs. 30
crores and if we do not pay anything
at all we will be gainers by Rs. 80
crores, But we are not talking in
terms of agreements but in terms of
disagreements, of continuing dis-
agreements and taking the conse-
quences of those disagreements, In
such matters, water especially and
other matters, what one gains is in-
finitely more than a sum that we may
give now or later. The decision that
we get a free supply of water after
that ten-year period and fairly free
supply Dbefore that within certain
limits is a tremendous gain. It may
have been better, I do not know, and
there may have been better negotia-
tors—it is a matter on which any-
body can have his opinion, But the
mere fact that this has taken twelve
years would at least convince the
House that nothing, not a comma,
not a full stop has been accepted
without the longest argument and the
closest attention to each detail Cer-
tainly, Sir, I was not capable of it.
Unfortunately, I did not deal with it
in that way, I got only the broad
facts, but I have to congratulate those
who had to deal with it, specially our
engineers who were there and who
fought for India’s interests strenuous-
ly. They knew—they were experts in
this matter—how much water is
necessary here, there and every-
where, and numerous plans were
made and all that,

Therefore, here is this context of a
treaty being arrived at after all these
long years of dispute and controversy,
It should, I submit, Sir, receive a
little more friendly treatment by this
House—also those who are responsi-
ble for it—not I but those who were
responsible, those who took enor-
mous pains and who got in the cir-
cumstnces, I think a very good deci-
sion. “In the circumstances”, I add,
because one can always improve upon
it—less money or more money, what-
ever it is,
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The hon, Member has referred to
the 1948 agreement. If reference is
made to that—it was a broad agree-
ment; it was not a treaty in the
sense of any details or anything—an
approach was indicated in it. I was
in it, I signed it and I remember how
it was done, The conference had
broken up almost when I came into
the picture—otherwise I would not
have come in, After a little discus-
sion, more or less I dictated that at
the conference table. I said, this is
a broad approach, we are not giving
up any rights, you are not giving up
any rights, let us go ahead and deal
with it in the future. It was not a de-
tailed examination; it was a broad ap-
proach. I regret to say that that ap-
proach was not followed later by the
other side, as it often happens.

About the World Bank coming into
the picture, an hon. Member opposite
has said that never in the history of
the world has this happened. I am
sorry; my knowledge of history ig li-
mited. I cannot say; he may be right,
but it seems to me a very ordinary
thing to happen—not a very unusual
thing—for anybody, to do, and to do
what? To offer help in the considera-
tion of the problem. They were not be-
coming arbitrators or anything. They
offered, It really came about in this
way. Mr. Lilienthal, who was origi-
nally connected with the Tennessee
Valley Authority and later with the
Atomic Energy Commission in the
United States, came to India seven or
eight years ago and to Pakistan, etc.
He wag conected with and he was
very much interested in matters con-
cerning waters. I met him and other
met him too. Then he wrote an arti-
cle in a periodical giving his impres-
sions about his visit to India and re-
ferred especially to this canal waters
dispute. In that article he suggested
that it might be a good thing if India
and Pakistan had the advantage of as-
sociating the World Bank with it, with
the expert engineers, etc., and that it
might help. It was only a question of
an attempt, if you like, at the most,
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to help in our coming to an agreement
between ourselves. They could not
impose anything.

Thereafter, this was put to us, to
me and to the then Prime Minister of
Pakistan, and naturally I agreed, as I
would agree in similar circumstances.
Again, it would be a singularly un-
gracious and provocative thing to say,
“No, we will not agree to anybody
coming and helping us in this and we
will stick to it, whatever you say, and
talk to nobody about it.” That sort of
thing is not helpful especially when
you seek any kind of friendly settle-
ment or any settdement.

1 agreed and said “I will be happy;
it might help.” I did not think then—
it did not come into my mind at all—
that this was going to be a very long-
drawn out thing for another seven or
eight years. I thought it would take
six, eight or nine months or a year.
But it went on and on and there we
were tied up with it. I do not think
it would be right for me to blame the
World Bank for this, because the
World Bank was anxious to get out of
it and finish it.

Shri Mahanty: May I interrupt, and
mention that this is an agreement bet-
ween these two countries? How is it
that Mr. Iliff of the World Bank is also
a signatory to this treaty? That was
the question I was asking.

Shri Jawaharlal Nehru: He is a
signatory. But it hag nothing to do
with our relations with Pakistan or
payments. He is a signatory because
there is the other part of it. All kinds
of money are going to be given to
Pakistan by the World Bank; he is a
signatory in that sense and for that
part of it. Not the exact payment or
whatever we have to do to Pakistan
or they have to do to us: he has no
business there.

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: They
also have to pay money to us in case
Pakistan fails—In case the time is ex-
tended by three years, from 1970 to
1973.
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Shri Jawaharlal Nehru: Who has to
pay?

Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: The
World Bank has to pay to India.

Shri A. C. Guha: The Indus-Basin
Commission.

Shri Jawaharlal Nehru: Yes; there
are certain clauses. But in the main,
the Bank comes in because they are
paying money and through them a
number of other countries are paying
money to Pakistan. Nobody is paying
mouey 10 us except independently. For
the Beas project, the World Bank is
goung to give us a loan.

So, the coming in of the World
Bank into this matter was quite nor-
mal; that is what might happen and
1 believe it has hapened and it often
happens. 1 think that looking back
at these seven or eight - years, the
World Bank has been extraordinarily
helpful. They worked hard . for this
and they <id et profit by it in any-
way. They .worked hard, because
they thought it was a good thing to
help in this settlement. The fact of
the matter is, whenever anything is
happening between India and Pakistan
—any major thing—there have been as
the House knows, extraordinary diffi-
culeies in even getting simple things
solved. For the moment I am not
blaming anybody, though people are
to blame; but the fact is, in the cir-
cumstances, the complexities arising
out of the partition, the passions,
prejudices, fears and apprehen-
sions, neither side is prepared to loosen
its hold to a position. It has hap-
pened often. Therefore, the coming in
of an outsider sometimes helps. Any-
how, I think the coming in of the
World Bank has been helpful, as re-
sults have shown.

About this argument about consult-
ing Parliament at every step; I should
like the House to consider what that
means and what that would lead to. 1
do mnot think it is possible for any kind
of these complicated agreementg to be
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dealt with, when we have to refer to
Parliament, There must have been, I
.uppose, in this particular matter,
dozens of approaches, dozens of plans,
discussed, ultimately rejected and
something happened. Are we to come
at every step and ask Parliament?
You cannot carry on any kind of nego-
tiation, even relatively simple ones
and certainly not this very difficult
one.

Theretfore, very wisely, the Constitu-
tion and convention lay down that in
such agreements, Government has to
stake its own judgment, its future, on
it. There is no other way, One takes
a risk; maybe that Government may
go wrong. But there is no ther way to
deal with it. As it is, in the methods
of Parliament’s working, a great deal
of work comes on the shoulders of Par-
liament and it is rather difficult to
keep pace “with all the work one has.
If you add to that, that work will
suffer; that cannot be carried on. We
have agreements, I should imagine,
every week or ten days with different
countries, on some subject or other;
some are more important and some
less. But the principle applies to all.

Coming to the actual merits of this,
I confe.s that, reading the notes my
colleagues took about the points rais-
ed, I have a feeling of extreme dep-
ression that any honourable or respect-
ed Member of this House should say
what has been said. It represents a
complete absence of any perspective
approach to this problem, any future
approach or any benefits as a whole
which we derive. It represents an ex-
ceedingly narrow-minded approach
which may, perhaps, injure the other
party, but certainly would injure our
own interests also at the same time.

In such matters, there has to be give
and take. One hon. Member said, this
is the second partition of India. I stand
amazed and astounded that anybody
should use such loose language, which
has no meaning, which is really a per-
version of the facts. Partition of what?
Of an inch of territory? Partition
of - a pailful of water? What
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have we partitioned? Is that the way
to approach an international question?
This is an international question. That
is'why I said I was depressed that
when we are dealing with mighty
things like relationship of nations, the
future of India spreading out, the
future of Pakistan spreading out, we
should talk in thi, way, which has no
relation to fact. What is it? You may
say, if youlike, We have given a crore
or two more or some money more. You
may say that we have allowed them
water for another two or three years,
which we should not have allowed.
Those are presumably the two main
things. How, Ishould like to know, is
this House now to judge of the quantum
of supply of water or the quantum of
money to be given. I confess I cannot
judge it off hand. Of course, I can say
that Rs. 70 crores is less than Rs. 80
crores. That is a question of arith-
matic and one could say: if I could
give Rs. 70 crores why should I give
Rs. 80 crores, whatever the figure
might be. But about the relative
rightness of the figure nobody can say.
‘When you deal in thig matter it is a
balance struck after 3 hundred factors
are taken into consideration; it is a
balance struck after ten years of long
and bitter argument. Samething is
done because it is considered, in the
balance, that is desirable.

As a matter of fact, long years ago—
I think about four or five years ago—
when first this problem reached this
stage it was broadly admitted—it was
not even initialled—that in paying
probably, right from the beginning the
conception is that we have to pay
them what they have to replace, be-
cause we do not give them that quan-
tum of water. That has been the prin-
ciple all along.

Some hon. Members have been say-
ing that there was partition, what has
happened is none of our lookout, we
should not give them anything. That is
neither a strictly legal, constitutional
or just approach to this problem.  If
we follow that approach it would mean
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turning a great part of West Punjab
into almost a wilderness.

17:22 hrs.
[MR. SPEAKER in the Chair]

Of course, in the course of 10 or 20
years other things may have been evo-
lved, but I have not followed them
completely. What is more important
is not being able to profit ourselves
by it, because we cannot build up all
these things, if all these remain in a
spirit of uncertainty anq lack of de-
cision. So that, about the amount to
be given I do submit that no person
can say year after year we give every
rupee for so many acre feet here or
so many acre feet there that we have
got.

Somebody has asked, I believe, for
the presentation of papers here; how
I do not know. All those numerous
papers will probably fill 3 cart. You
can imagine ten years’ papers and if
you have to bring them and present
them to Parliament you require a
truck—huge number of correspond-
ence, this debate, that engineer’s esti-
mate etc. running to hundreds of
pages. It is a mountain of papers; it is
not a few letters exchanged, for a pe-
riod of twelve years.

But what I would submit is how can
the most brilliant and the most accom-
piished of the hon. Members opposite,
how can they come to a conclusion
about this matter that we have paid
more or less, off-hand. Obviously, it
is always better to pay less; no argu-
ment is necessary. But by payment
you get something in exchange. You
can balance the two and you may still
say that it is better not to have an
agreement, to have conflict instead and
to carry on in this way of conflict in-
stead of giving it away. If it is a
question of high principle it might be
right. But surely the giving of a
crore or two of rupees is never a ques-
tion of high principle, whatever else it
may be. It may be right or wrong by
your judgment; you may calculate it.
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I cannot say. I have not calculated
all that. But I must have gone scores
and scores of times over these figures,
mad suggestions and tried to under-
stand them. My colleague has dealt
with them many more times and we
felt that in the circumstances this is
a right payment. And we purchased
a settlement, if you like; we purchased
peace and it is good for both coun-
tries.

Then hon. Members have asked:
why did you not make an overall
settlement over the question when you
did this? It js an excellent idea to
have overall settlement. Possibly the
hon. Member, if he had the opportu-
nity to deal with these matters, he
might have been more successful. I
do not deny it. But I would again
respectfully request this House to see
what does it mean. We have been
struggling with this problem, not we
have not wanted to solve it. Slowly
we have gone ahead, slowly here and
there and then there is the coming
back, That is what we have been do-
ing. And a'l the records of the last
twelve years may be considered a
record, if you like, of errors and
omissions, and some advance, what-
ever it is; it is a mixed record. But
to say that you ought to have done
that is merely saying something which
is highly unlikely, which cannot be
done. We have been struggling to do
that and we have been wanting to do
that.

Hon. Members said, “Why d&id you
not write off the national debt?” Yes,
I should have liked to do it but
I could not do it in the
circumstances, From the very begin-
ning it wag decided—though it was
stated only about five years ago but
it was clear—that we have to pay for
this. According to our own assump-
tion we had to pay. What to pay is a
d'fferent matter. We calculated that
roughly we have to pay between Rs. 60
crores and Rs. 70 crores, Several
years ago a rough calculation was
made. We had gone into it. Engi-
neers had calculated that we had to
pay Rs, 60 crores to Rs, 70 crores. It
might have been more, they said.
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That was several years ago. It was
decided that this we will have to pay
in a certain way and it was no good
writing it off. That was decided then.
If you like, you may say that those
were the minimum terms and the mat-
ter will be proceeded with. Going
further into it, the sum has been some-
what exceeded. By some calculations
the sum demanded by Pakistan was
about Rs. 300 crores which is a consi-
derably bigger sum, naturally, than
whatever we have agreed to. This has
been the background and the process.

Now I would like this House to con-
sider the enormous butden on the
ministry dealing with this matter and
on our representatives there who were
dealing with it month after month and
year after year. We have had to deal
with these_constant tussles and strug-
gles and see the whole picture before
coming to a decision.

May I say just one word? An hon.
Member from a constituency in Ben-
gal referred to the policy of appease-
ment and surrender of India to Pakis-
tan, He also referred to the question
of Berubari, That is not the question
before the House and it would not be
proper for me to take the time of the
House on that question now. When it
comeg I will do it. But it is a matter
of deep regret to me that an agree-
ment, not about Berubari but the
whole agreement because again it is
part of an agreement, should be for-
gotton and what we gain by it, and
that one should imagine that we shall
only look at what we lose by it and not
at what we gain by it. We have very
substantial and profitable gains by it.

Secondly. I would like to correct an
error, which is often being repeated
namely, that we came to this agree-
ment without reference to the State
Government or the State Govern-
ment’s reprssentatives. That is would
and absolutely incorrect.

Shri S. M. Banerjee (Kanpur):
The Chief Minister has said that only
yesterday.

Shri Jawaharla] Nehru: I am cor-
recting it. There may be a misune
derstanding. The State Government's
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representatives were here throughout.
All this period they were sitting here
and discussing, not with me but with
our Ministry, The External Affairs
Ministry and the State Government’s
representatives constantly discussed
this. T was not there and I cannot
vouch from personal knowledge what
they discussed between them, but
everyday they discussed. Then this
was discussed with the Pakistan
representatives by our Ministry.
Whenever any proposals were put be-
fore me, I asked the Commonwealth
Secretary, ‘“Has this got the agree-
ment of the Bombay representa-
tives?” Because Bombay area was
concerned. Only when he said
‘“Yes”, did I look into it. So I asked
him, “Has this got the agreement of
the representatives from West Ben-
gal, Assam and so on?” and he
always said to me—that I can vouch
for myself—‘Yes, they have agreed to
this in the balance.” It may be that
what the Commonwealth Secretary
reported to me was due to some
misunderstanding. @ He thought that
they agreed when they had not. I
was not there personally. Therefore
I want to limit my stand to what I
think. All these people were discus-
sing daily and I presume that what
was reported to me was a correct
fact. It was reported to me that they
do agree, not that they liked it, in the
balance, that this was a better thing
and that we may lose the whole area
unless we agreed to this. I am not
going into the merits, but I merely
say that for clearing this matter up
because it would be very very wrong
for me or for any Government to deal
with a matter of this kind ignoring
the State Government, It is an
outrageous position to adopt for any
Government, I can understand, as I
said, that there might have been some
misunderstanding between the offi-
cials. They might have said in such
a way that our Commonwealth Secre-
tary thought they had agreed while
they had not. It is a possibility. I
do not deny that. But the fact is that
I based every step that I took on the
statement given to me that the Bengal

NOVEMBER 30, 1960

Indus Waters Treaty 3226

officials who had come had agreed to
this proposal. And when they
agreed, I thought they know all about
that. I am not going into the details.
I am merely clearing it up.

Shri A. C. Guha: From our side,
we are in a confused position. The
Chief Minister of West Bengal Gov-
vernment and the Bengal Assembly
passed a Resolution which was moved
by the Chief Minister,

An Hon. Member: Very unfortu-
nate.

Shri A, C. Guha: You say that they
have been consulted. They say that
they have not been consulted.

Shri Jawaharlal Nehru: I have
stated this. There can be no doubt
about certain facts; that their offi-
cials were here in large numbers
throughout this period: point No. 1;
that they were daily in consultation
with each other: point No, 2; that it
was reported to me by my Common-
wealth Secretary in regard to each
matter that the representatives of the
State Government concerned had
agreed to it, whether it was Bombay
or Assam or Punjab or Bengal. There
were four State Governments con-
cerned with separate matters. This
I can say with definiteness. I am per-
factly prepared to admit that in the
course of the long talks, there might
have been some confusion in the
mind of my Commonwealth Secretary.
The Chief Secretary of the West Ben-
gal Government was here, It may be
when the Chief Secretary went back,
he was asked by the Bengal Govern-
ment and he might have said, he did
not agree, I was amazed when I
read this. I had not talked to him.
But, this is the report. However, it
is unfortunate that this kind of things
happen. What I wanted to clear up
was this. On no account do I consi-
der it proper for me or for any Cen-
tral Government to proceed in a
matter of this kind without reference
to the State concerned. That should
not be. I am sorry I have brought in
some other matter. I just wanted to
clear it up.
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Shri Harish Chandra Mathur: Mr.
Speaker, may I seek a little clarifica-
tion from the hon. Prime Minister?
He has referred to our speeches. The
two important points in connection
with this treaty are these. Five mil-
lion acre feet of water which we were
to draw from the Chenab, we have
given up. This water we have given
up in perpetuity, not for 10 or 5
years, water which would have gone
to do a considerable lot for us. On
the other hand, Pakistan has got more
water than they need and that water
is to go into the sea. May I know
what are the circumstances which led
to it? Secondly. in 1948 when the
hon. Prime Minister signed the Inter-
Dominion agreement or something
like that. there was definitely a ques-
tion regarding replacement canals. It
is perfectly a human approach to
which we have all agreed that we
must give Pakistan time to have cer-
tain alternate sources. But, at that
time, there was only the question of
time, I would like to know when
the question of our making money
payment cropped up, how it cropped
up, because at that time, they only
wanted time. It is quite human that
we should give time. These are the
two points on which I seek clarifica-
tion.

Shri Jawaharlal Nehru: I am very
much pressed for time. I have mot to
accompany the Crown Prince in two
minutes time. So far as the first
point is concerned, I would gladly,—
I do not consider mvself competent
to do so—send the Engineer in charge
to discuss this matter with the hon.
Member and try to explain to him
how he functioned and why he func-
tioned, How can I discuss these
technical matters? So far as the
second point is concerned. I said there
was no detailed consideration in 1948.
It was something that I dictated on
the spot as an avoroach and they
agreed with it. They repudiated it
after that. As the hon. Member

knows, again and again various points"

came up.

ft AR (TETEYR) o weae
HERE, TETT A S ¥ e F ag A
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T F gfawis 9390 9 99 F AT
TRYIM am e g s s ¥
Fror 4, o ¥ d9fw fa s §
aiffe & @19 @A qAET F qaR F
adt §fy 1 | g9 ¥ T aa @ i §,
foraay ST & =g F FA AHET
FIAT AEATE, 30 AT FARFRY)
TH F eI gg SFICATHY S & R AT
&1 FAT< ghm, arfeeE &1 A}
g, o) R F}E T a1 fER
T g A fH% 98 I Rwew A
fewe fFam S@T | SEF a” TR
TETT GHAT AT AT SATIE TR
g | arfeeaTe ¥ usgafa ¥ gw &@fg
I3 EEATER E1 & 912 39 a7 &1 1o
F ¢ 7 sage 99T FT 99T §
SAIE FGF, AR SAAT FIIH FT 7a-
AqF § vTFE QAT | § ITH &7 q Y
HTTF FTHAA TGAT AT § | i F

gferse #ga & :

“By accepting the procedure for
joint inspection of the river
courses, India has, by implication,
conceded the principle of joint
control extending to the upper
region of Chenab and Jhelum, and
joint control comprehends joint
possession.”

o9 WX ITF FRT  FT W AT
ferar s @Y 9 &y F oo gER A
& foq aeT @aw™ g4, AR TR
W IAH T3T FT AL AT AY IT G
¥ gardy swrear FT § ? gAT gfeewior
AT &, 59 F1 62 oy A1 e |
1% @S @Sr v, WK qrfeeTT
T AT T FIRT  F4T, T4 fF IEay
srF Safe §, a1 T ag wrAar Fggw
THFTE FT A, WR A< F 99 by
T qg | ST |

QF WY §wq : gg i o< g !
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ot TG : S @i, g o IEH
sageaT Frad & 1 Ay fAgzA  fraa-
frmsm Etarzfiaow &
urcfazas. ...

st ge (frormae) « wEi @ ag
afeat fAeadt § 3T 9T arfeeaTa &r
FET Y AT T &Y, 98 ARfGIaT ¥ fag
gl T " |

st awIdt : ag Igbr A9 AL @,
# 79 ¥ wgwa g, AfFw 7 Y faars
ST N g8 89 faae wmfex § 99
FET IT gYE @A | WR G ¢ qar
FaEIT gar et FaAr g1 fa <
MF § AY AAT gW T a9 FAT ]
#1 fae w= F@  7afy ag @ @y
% 5 T3 a9 T NifFeae a9 o
FLIT TIAT ATEAT 97 AR ag & fag
FT qY 9T g A9 & fqq T 9,
9% 9F gHy gAY wuaAtar agr fwar
AR AT gA I FUTTo AN ®E |
mfgy ag &9 TR ¥ =
&7 AfgF AT § 5 97 ag @y
&7 g o) w288 F AR e
FY ITAET AT F< F faar g, q1 399
ST FT FITEAT | AT AT A AT
T ot ar WS FY H A § 0 A
At 8F & @ qEaar wfegq 5 w4
FIE T T F |

UFAAA  FT T8 &7 9 ¥ F
gag & s wfafer @t € &, Iq@r
qord qA ST § FE gHETT g
fFar g 1| sy F197 F fgama &
e FT I qUAr W A FFeR-
T AR FI AN, W FT9T qUAY
o1l I qOq w1 A AT A AT
qFar | g9 W Jrgd ar qrfeeara
#1 TN §F A= wqt 9 WA F fg
JTR FT qFF 4 | A Sfadz weqa
af Fgx € 5 afg @ @t 7, 7R
WRA. & A q5r 994 @ TEf
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2 | TEAT A A I A= fAe
ST\ § 7g STAAT g g BF W A
|1 wfFAT 97 o At A F AETA F
T ¥ a1 7R gAR 19 FA 7 IqH
gET far R ag qiE o T |
FIT Y A 9 7 H HI FATT A A
wfasr 7 a7 FQ@ AT W F
7 g #R faa enfaa @
F a1g FQ & O Fw fagzq  fasr
AR qgATaaT Trfqa FIX F1 Fg TAFT
gl & | aiffem R #1E W A
FZAT 8, TAT WA T@AT &, A ITHT
fadta Qar wifgg | AR TR IAd
g3 faney & = qrfwe ¥ w41
=g 47 TIRYT A H THT | H3F
HT FT AT AM@ HT TF F FTC
FFa @ gE A B waT ¥ A
THRAT ] |

7 gg W vg@ AEwW r fa7 A%
q 73 §fq w1 7dy A for 7 3 & i
@A Y gaA 63 Y €, ITF AR A
qeA Y fazamg ® A faa sar
g 3%  fF 9@ 1 59 73 ]
nfgsr &, AIfwa  Fafaw feafy &
HAT FPFL, ITETIT R A 3 fazqd
F faar st wifgs 5 a2FR Far F
Sr @Y &, #A0w qR F faia Faq
saraafs g 7 g1, ITF T FY g
¥ o} g F wifas feafy ¥ 3 99
Z

oA TH A T4 F IR T IHAA
T faar 7qr A1 37 F AT AHF
NAGATFLEY | TS FT FTATIT F
fearar A1 Agd arat gaarar 3 faar
U 4% 7 §3F I T 91 9 TH AT
&1 fazara & agf faqr aqc | Fraq A
gfiz & ag % & a7 §, AT T3
WRT ¥ AFTT F7 fagra gy Qg a
B aqY qReyd eraAY Aifga i avgq
T AP F (472 W § 9T g4 A
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o qqar & g4 g7 wialfaat #
fazag & &, agd o §fy W &
fea ® 7df &, wifrem 1 ga wAfem
AT 2 FY 1T F | 99 T 9
qifeT &1 fasar gu faorly ag #1%
fazam & wmu 7 g gwar | 59 df
¥ wafe a7 9919 g AR GEA AR
HY ST g8 93T gE & | g O &
fan wiffeam ¥ w991 agT FIF A
FaTe HI ST 947 fgama § 37 Jhav
ffg o & gard &7 T TqH A AT

ifed

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: I have
heard the discussion on the Treaty
which was entered into between India
and Pakistan in relation to the canal
waters question. Unfortunately, I do
not have sufficient time at my dis-
posal to go into so many matters
which probably it would have been
very necessary to go into. Therefore,
I shall select one point which is in my
opinion the most important, and that
is in regard to the division or the allot-
ment of the rivers as between India
and Pakistan.

The Western rivers, namely the
Indus, Jhelum and Chenab, of which
the total water is 168 million acre-
feet are allotted to Pakistan....

Mr, Speaker: How many acre-feet?

Sardar Igbal Singh: 168 million
acre-feet is the total flow of all the
six rivers.

Shri Hathi: 135 million acre-feet is
the collective water-flow of all the
three western rivers; and 33 million
acre-feet is the collective water-flow
of the three eastern rivers; and the
total is 168 million acre-feet.

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: The
total water-flow of all these six rivers,
both wester and eastern, is 168 million
acre-feet, that of the western rivers
being 135 million acre-feet and that of

AGRAHAYANA 9, 1882 (SAKA)

Indus Wa.ers 3232
Treaty

the eastern rivers being 33 million
acre-feet. I am going to say one thing
which I think will set at rest this
controversy that this treaty has done
injustice to India because only 33
million acre-feet have been allotted
to India as against 135 million acre-
feet to Pakistan. The real position is
as follows.

The Indus starts from Tibet, enters
Kashmir in its hilly portion and then
enters Pakisitan, It lies Kashmir
only in that portion which is hilly. As
far as the Jhelum is concerned, it ori-
ginates in Kashmir and then enters
Pakistan. As far as the Chenab is
concerned, it emanates from Punjab
and then goes to Himachal Pradesh
and then to Kashmir and then to
Pakistan.

From this, it should be clear that
as far as the construction of works
for the purposes of irrigation is con-
cerned, because these two rivers,
namely, Jhelum and Indus are flowing
through Kashmir in an area which is
so hilly and the physical features are
such as do not permit of the construc-
tion of any large irrigation works
there. No water could be tapped from
that area for irrigation purposes on
large scale. As far as other uses of
water are concerned, they are allowed
to India under the Treaty, as for
example, generation of electricity, use
of water for industry and other pur-
poses. As far as irrigation is con-
cerned, my point is only this that
when it is not possible to construct
works there for the purpose of large
scale irrigation, it would have been
of no use to take any water of those
rivers for India.

As far as the irrigation needs of
India are concerned within Kashmir,
in Himachal Pradesh and in East
Punjab, the water which India can
take under the Treaty from the
Western rivers is enough for the
needs of those lands there which are
irrigated at present and those which
will be irrigated later. For both, suffi-
cient water has been allowed, 7 to 10
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million acre feet is the quantity which
may be taken. That is enough for
that area. No more water can be
used there for irrigation. When we
cannot use the water for any purpose
there, when we cannot construct
works also, one can easily understand
how far it would have been profitable
for India to have more share out of
the water of the Western Rivers. I
think it would have been a folly,
when as much as we require has
already been taken by us. But from
the division of water which is agreed
upon and which is before you, although
it is apparently very inequitable and
looks as if a great injustice has been
done to India in that so much water
has been given to Pakistan and so
little to India, the position is as I
have stated that it is not possible to
make use of it and we have no lands
to irrigate with any more waler.
Whatever land we have can be pro-
vided with irrigation with the water
which has been taken by us.

Shri Barman (Cooch-Behar-Reserv-
ed-Sch. Castes): Will it be sufficient
for Rajasthan also?

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: I am
coming to that.

Sardar Igbal Singh: It has been
provided in the Treaty that India in
the next few years will increase the
irrigation potential by 4,70,000 acres.
So it is possible to do that.

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: I could
not follow the question.

Shri D. C, Sharma: (Gurdaspur):
The hon. Minister should be permit-
ted to go on; questions could be
asked afterwards.

Sardar Igbal Singh: It has been
provided in the treaty that India will
increase its irrigated area under
Jhelum by 4 lakh acres and under
Indus by 70,000 acres; and it is pos-
sible.

Shri Hathi: That we have taken in-
to account.
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Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: Wherever
We can use water, water has been
provided for in the Treaty.

Mr. Speaker: The hon. Member only
supports the hon, Minister.

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: Both
present irrigadon and future irriga-
tion have been taken into account.

There was again the point about the
payment of Rs, 83 crores, in order
that Pakistan may be able to pro-
vide repiacement works for purposes
of irrigation in her area. It is object-
ed to on the ground that this should
not have been given because it was
not incumbent on India to make this
payment. But, as far as the amount
of Rs, 83 crores is concerned, I assure
the hon. Members that this amount
has been assessed neither by the
World Bank nor by the officials of
Pakistan. It was assessed by us, by
our engineers on the basis of the
works being provided most economic-
ally. They examined what would be
the amount required and came to the
conclusion that so much money would
be required, Pakistan wanted Rs. 300
crores.

Pandit J, P. Jyotishi (Sagar): Are
we responsible for the construction in
their country?

Mr. Speaker: The hon. Member
attacks the principle itself.

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: Respon-
sibility undertaken at the time of
concluding the treaty is one thing; and
responsibility undertaken before tihat
is another thing, Long before ihe
treaty was concluded it was announced
in this House also by Shri Pati] that
we had promised to the World Bank
that we would give time to Pakistan
for the purpose of the construction of
the replacement works and the most
economic cost of the construction of
those works.

Shri Hathi: This was placed be-
fore the House.
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Mr. Speaker; Was it assessed n
terms of the value of replacement of
the existing works?

Shri Hathi: Really, there were
various estimates prepared as to what
it would cost for replacement. The
Bank broadly assessed the main prin-
ciples—eastern rivers to India and
western rivers to Pakistan and the
transition period to be later on decid-
ed; and thirdly, the payment towards
costs of replacement to be made by
India. These were the three broad
principles which formedq the basis of
the 1954 proposals of the World Bank
which have been placed before the
House and the House is fully aware.

Now comes the question of detailed
costs; whether they would be Rs.
60 crores or Rs. 70 crores or Rs. 80
crores. Pakistan had prepared a
scheme which involved a cost of Rs.
350 crores. That was according to us,
too much. We evolved our own
plan which would replace the
waters. According to that, our
engineers calculated it at about Rs. 83
crores. This is the amount which we
have agreed and not the estimate
which Pakistan prepared.

Mr. Speaker: Was this amount
needed for the improvement of Pakis-
tan for digging canals where there
were none and providing irrigation
works where there were none or for
replacement of the canals which had
already been there and which had fal-
len into disuse and therefore new ones
had to be dug up in their place? It
is one thing to say that we shall give
them because we purchase water from
them, when the water does not be-
long to us. If the water belongs to us
we have got a right to the water
that we have now got. Is this Rs. 83
crores the value of the irrigation sour-
ces which were in existence or which
are in existence today in Pakistan and
which have fallen into disuse and have
to be replaced or substituted by new
ones?

1423(Ai) LSD—10.
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Shri Raghunath Singh (Varanasi):
When the hon. Minister is here why
not he reply?

Mr. Speaker: Why should the hon.
Member alone speak when there are
500 Members here?

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: I have
not heard what has been said. It has
been asked whether this amount is
for replacement or for new works also.
The money is meant only for the cost
of those works which are to be pro-
vided for the purpose of replacement
by Pakistan. And, as I said, the cost
has been assessed by us. So, we can-
not blame, in this connection, any-
body except ourselves. Some years
ago, it was said that the cost would
be Rs. 60 crores. I do not know whe-
ther it was a correct estimate or not.
This is an estimate which has been
correctly made by our engineers and
we are going to actually pay it. So
many things crop up and some things
are done and some things are not done.
They are not completed in the same
share in which they were expected to
be at that time.

Why did we accept that responsi-
bility that the cost of replacement wil}
be given? As far as Pakistan is con-
cerned, they claim it on the basis of
an international convention and they
may go—I would not have said it but
unfortunately I have to say—to some
court.

Shri Vajpayee: Let them go.

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: I do
not know what would have been the
result there, if it had been challenged.
But there is one thing that it would
have been very cruel on our part.
When India was divided, those people
who were living in that area were
getting these irrigation facilities. Due
to no fault of theirs, why should they
have been deprived of that conveni-
ence? It is not their fault that certain
events happened; it is not their fault
that India was divided. Again, they
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have been using that water for years
and years and under the law here
after twenty years’ use, there is the
right of easement. That becomes an
established right. They had been us-
ing that water for years and years and
they had been provided with water
for a long period of time. Now, we
want to withdraw water and so we
are expected to give some money in
exchange for that. I may again point
out that this sum of Rs. 83 crores has
been given for the purpose of replace-
ment of that water which will come
to us and with which our production

will increase by about Rs. 100 crores”

a year.
Mr. Speaker: Is this new water?

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: Yes,
Sir. That water was being used in
Pakistan previously. As a result of
the arrangements that are being en-
tered into, that water will revert to
India and India will make use of that
water. As a result of this use of
water by India production in India
will increase by about Rs. 100 crores;
the additiona]l yield will be of the
value of Rs. 100 crores per year.
For that Rs. 83 crores has been ac-
cepted by us. I do not know how far
this is wrong.

Pandit J. P. Jyotishi: Is the sum of
Rs. 83 crores to be spent on canals
which are to bemefit our country.

Shri Raghunath Singh: No, no.
An Hon, Member: Indirectly.

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: He has
put the question and I answer ‘yes’.
It is to the benefit of India. India
will use this water. India has not
been using it before. It is still in
use by Pakistan. It is in use by the
people who are living in those areas.
After this, India is going to use it and
India’s production will be increased
by that.

Mr, Speaker: He only wanted to
know whether in addition to Rs. 83
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crores that we are giving to Pakistan
for buildings, canals, restoring taks etc,
we have to incur a similar expendi-
ture on our side to get all this water.
Is it that none of these irrigation
sources will be useful to us?

Shri Hathi: It will be useful to
us.

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: Obvi-
ously, it is 12 million acre feet of
water. It was being used before
partition by the people living in that
area. It was with the Government
of Pakistan and up till now they
have been using it. It will now come
to India. The entire water will now
come to India, India will use it,
India’s production-will go up and that
production will be worth Rs. 100
crores per year. I am pointing out
all this to show that there is justifica-
tion for our accepting this sum. It
is not a case of throwing money and
wasting it recklessly or mercilessly.
It has been done for the purpose of
achieving some benefit for the coun-
try. Supposing there is no treaty the
dispute will continue, they will be
making use of the water and India
will remain without it. Therefore,
that benefit is quite clear and it can
be very easily understood by anyone.

Dr. Melkote (Raichur): Sir, may I
seek one clarification?

Some Hon. Members: No, no.

Shri D. C. Sharma: Sir, it is already
ten minutes past six.

Mr. Speaker: When are we to close
if hon. Members go on like this?

Dr. Melkote: Sir, according to the
statement made here at present the
need both for Pakistan as well as for
India is limited and they cannot uti-
lise all the waters of these rivers and
there is surplus. That surplus instead
of remaining in India has been made
over to Pakistan. Why?

An Hon, Member: Human consi-
derations.
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Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: I point-
ed out just now about two of the
three  western rivers—Indus and
Jhelum. As far as Indus is concern-
ed it flows in Kashmir only in that
area which is a difficult one. With-
out going into the plains it enters
Pakistan. If there is India involved
in it, India is in Kashmir only as far
as this river is concerned. According
to this not an inch in Kashmir will
be left without getting irrigation. I
am, Sir, speaking of water of the
western rivers. That will be irrigat-
ing the areas in Kashmir; that will be
irrigating the areas in Himachal
Pradesh and further on in East Pun-
jab. The result will be that neither
in Himachal Pradesh nor in Kashmir
nor in East Punjab will there be
any land which will get no water
from these rivers for irrigation. So,
all these waters are going to be used.

Shri Raghunath Singh: It is
written in history that a century ago
Sind water was utilised for South
Rajasthan and Saurashtra. So, may I
know whether the surplus water of
Sind could be given to South Rajas-
than and Saurashtra as was done a
century ago.

Mr. Speaker: Order, order.
Shri D. C. Sharma: It is very clear.

Mr. Speaker: No more questions.
But the hon. Minister may refer to
Rajasthan as something was raised
about it.

Haflz Mohammad Ibrahim: Rajas-
than will get water. Let me state the
position and I request that the House
may sit for a minute or two more for
that purpose. About the Rajasthan
canal, the position is this. Today,
this canal is not ready. It is not in
existence in that sense, namely, that
we can use any drop of water from
it. Work on the canal was started two
years ago.
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Pandit J. P. Jyotishi: Then why
should we give up the right?

Hafiz Mohammad Ibrahim: The
construction of it started two years
ago. It will take at least three years
more to take water out of it for
purposes of irrigation. Ang further,
the canal above is not enough for
purposes of irrigation unless channels
are taken to this area or that area, to
this side or that side, and the entire
area is covered with g network of
channels. At any rate, to reach all
the people of these areas, it is
going to take many years, and after
five years—1960 to 1965—as has been
recorded in the treaty, more water
will be withdrawn from Pakistan.
Then where will that water go ex-
cept to Rajathan Canals? Even now,
during the period from 1960-685, this
canal can get water if it becomes
ready to take the water. Had it been
ready, the position probably would
have been something different from
the one that we have taken into con-
sideration for this purpose. At pre-
sent, it is not possible to make use of
that water, but as soon as we are able
to make use of it, it will become
available to us. We will be able to
take the water. There is no hitch in
the way.

So, as far as Rajasthan is concerned
I assure hon. Members of the House
that Rajasthan canal will be construc-
ted; that Rajasthan will get water;
that Rajasthan will get irrigation;
that Rajasthan will get whatever has
been proposed for it. Everything
will be done and on account of this
treaty no suffering will come to pass
to the Rajasthan canal, and so we
have not given up any rights.

18.09 hrs.

The Lok Sabha then adjourned till
Eleven of the Clock on Thursday, the
1st December, 1960/Agrahayana 10,
1882 (Saka).






